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“Dedicated to Excellence p
Feople Serving People™

February 20, 2004

Honorable Mavor and City Commission
City of Panama City
Panama City, Florida

all material aspects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial
position and the results of operations of the various funds of the City.  All disclosures
fiecessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City"s financial activities
have been included,

For the September 30, 2003 financial statements, the City implemented the requUIrements
of  Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Diveussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments (GASB 34). The GARB 34 implementation presents a dramatic change in
governmental financial reporting. The new fi ormal, which provides far government-wide
and major fund presentations, expands the alternatives available to review/examine the
City and its major activities, Munagement's Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 3
provides an in-depth explanation of the method of reporting and financial condition of the
City.

Independent Audit Chapter 11,45 af the Florida Statutes requires an independent certified
public accountant financial audit for fiscal vear ended Seprember 30, 2003, and the
opinion of the independent auditor has been included in this repott on page 1. In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in the Florida State Statutes, the audit was designed
10 meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act of 1996 and related OMB
Circular A-133.  The standards governing single audit engagements requireg the
independent auditor 1o repart not only on the fair presentation of the finuncial statements,
but also on the audited government’s intemnal contrals and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving
the administration of federal awards These repons arc available in the Single Audit
Section beginning on page 117.

City ol Panama City « PO. Box 1880' » Panama City, Fiorids A2402-1880



The Reporting Entity And Its Services

The City of Panama City was incorporated on March 12, 1926 and covers an area of
approximately thirty-four square miles. The population of the City for 2003 was
estimated 1o be 36,541, The City is the county seat of Bay County. The City has a
commission-manager form of povernment and provides a full range of municipal services
including general government, public safety, public improvements, planning and zoning,
and related peneral and administrative serviees. In addition, the City operated three
enterprise activities — water and sewer, solid waste, and marina.

Criteria considered in concluding which related activities (component units) should be
included in the City’s combined financial statements are as follows:

Financial accountability;

Appointment of a voting majority;

Imposition of will;

Financial benefit to or burden on a primary povernment: and
Financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency.

The following component units were included, by discrete presentation for 2003, based
upon the criteria noted above:

Panama City Downlown Improvement Board
Panama City Port Authority

Economic Condition And Outlook

The City continues to be financially sound and the Bay County ares is still experiencing
new development and growth. Local business activities continue to be robust and no
major business closings have occurred. The two military bases, Tyndall Air Force Basze
and the Maval Surface Warfare Center Panama City provide approximately 10,000
military and civilian jobs and 9,000 retirees have chosen to remain in the Panama City-
Bay County arca, The annual economic impact of the two bases totals over $700 million.
several new multi-family housing developments were built, one of which will provide
modern, low-income housing to the elderly.

Major Initiatives

Dramage improvements continue o be a priority, Of the 52.5 million spent during fiscal
vear 2003, over 32 million was for improvements at Posten Bayouw, which included the
mnstallation of the City's first storm water pumping station. Other drainage improvement

projects included those at 9™ Strest, Watson Bayou, 19" Street and the 3" Street and
Beach Drive area,

Water and sewer revenue refunding bonds were issued in the amount of $11.440,000.
The bonds refunded the outstanding water and sewer 1993 bonds and provided an



A new Fire/Police Puhblic Safety Facility was acquired in the above-mentioned Panama
City North area &t Star Avenue in the amount of $344,960, The main police station
underwent another addition to house the City’s Code Enforcement personnel, A new fire
training “burn building” was purchased in the amount of $217 341

Three new pre-fabricated buj Idings costing $216,940 were installed at the Public Works
Complex. The buildings have provided coverad storage for tractors and other equipment,
as well as needed storage space for materials.

Streetscaping and improvements to Harrison Avenue downtown were completed, The
result has had a positive impact on the mercharts downtown and aided in bringing the
public to the area to shop, dine and attend special events.

For The Future

Revitlization of the St Andrews area of Panama City continues, During 2004
construction of a 116-unit luxury condominium wil] begin on a 3.5 acre parcel on the
bay. The project will include 12,000 feet of commercial space and is scheduled 1o he
completed by July 2005, Beck Avenue, the main thoroughfare in St Andrews, wil|
undergo a major streetscaping project to include new lighting and landscaping. A 2 500
square foot Marina Events Facility will be constructed on the newly-renovated marina,
which will be available for rental s well as provide space for an Open-air market on
weckends.

In conjunction with the downtown Harrison Avenue streetscape completion, the Panama
City Downtown Improvement Board wil) sponsor “Home For The Holidays™ between
Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Each Friday night, the merchants will open their
doors to the public, who will be entertained with horse-drawn carrtage rides and
musicians.

Park improvements in the amount of $450,000 are scheduled for fiscal vear 2003-2004,
including tennis court reconstruction at Oakland Terrace Park. Other culture and
recreations projects include Marina Civie Center HVAC work.

During fiseal year 2003-2004 $1.7 million in drainage projects are scheduled, as well as
§1.5 million in transportation resurfacing projects.

Accounting System And Internal Contral
The City's accounting, budgetary, and financial reporting systems have heen designed 1o
conform to the standards set forth by the American Institute of Certified Publje

Accountants, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the Office of Management
and Budget, and the State of Florida,

i



In developing and altering the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the
adequacy of internal accounting controls, Internal accounting controls are designed to
provide reasonahble, but not absolute, assurance regarding:

The safepuarding of assets against losz from unauthorized use or
disposition, and the reliability of financial records for preparing financial
statements and maintaining accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:

« The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and
e The evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by
management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe the City's
internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable
assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the government is also responsible
for ensuring that an adequate intermal control structure is in place 1o ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations related 1o those programs. This internal contral
structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

As part of the government’s single audit, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the
‘nternal control structure including that portion related to federal financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the government has complied with applicable laws
and repulations.

In conformance with the City Charter and Flonda Stanites, budgetary control is
maintained through constant review by the accounting division. Detailed monthly budget
reports are prepared for each depariment, documenting revenues and expenditures.

Budgetary Controls

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with the legal provisions
embodied in the anmual appropriated budget approved by the City Commission.
Activities of the General Fund, Utilities Fund, Seolid Waste Fund, Marina Fund, Dcbt
Service Fund, Dental and Medical Self-Insurance Funds, Community Planning and
Development Fund, and General Grants Fund are included in the appropriated annual
budget, The City also maintains an encumbrance accounting svstemn as one technique in
accomplishing budgetary controls. Encumbered amounts lapse at the year end
Encumbrances are generally reappropriated as part of the following year's budget.



Cash Management

The City has a banking service agreement with South Trust Bank. Funds are held in a
master concentration account and are 100% invested in an interest-bearing account.
Funds are disbursed through zero balance accounts when demand for payment is made at
the bank. The City utilized controlled disbursement accounts at South Trust Bank 1o
increase float time on disbursements.

Risk Management

Commercial insurance is purchased by the City for all risks of loss except medical and
dental claims of the City of Panama City employees and their covered dependents. The
Medical and Dental Self-Insurance Funds are accounted for as Internal Service Fund.
Medical claims exceeding $100,000 per insured and aggregate claims exceeding
§2.800,114 are covered through private carriers. Dental claims are limited to $750 per
year for each insured person.

Retirement Plans

The fire and police pension funds are cach single-employer defined benefit plans.
General employees other than uniformed fire and police who were emploved prior to
1996 are members of the Florida Retirement System, a multi-employer defined benefit
plan. Those employed after January 1, 1996 are members of the Retirement Flan and
Trust for the General Employees of the City of Panama City, which is a defined
eontribution plan,

The City of Panama City does not provide for postretirement benefits.  However, a
%1.000 life insurance policy is provided by the City to all retirees.

Reporting Achievement

The Government Finance Officers’ Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City
of Panama City, Florida, for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2002,

In arder 1o be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the
contents of which conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only, We believe our
current report continues 1o conform to the Certificate of Achievement program



requirements and we arc submitting this report to GFOA 1o determine its eligibility for
another certificate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor, City Commissions,
and City Manapger
City of Panama City, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Panama City, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Panoma City, Florida's management. Cur
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
jssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclasures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In cur opinion, the financial statements refemred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activitics, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Panama City, Florida, as of September 30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amenica.

As described in Note 1, the City has implemented a new financial reporting model. as required by the
provisions of GASDE Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Managemen!'s Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Crovernmienis, as of September 30, 2003,
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our repott dated December 18,
2003, on our consideration of the City of Panama City, Florida's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards and
should be read in conjunction with this report in comsidering the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analvsis on pages 3 through 13, are not a required part of the basic
financial statements bt are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepied in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and EXPress no opinion on it.

Our sudit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively camprise the City of Panama City, Florida basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by .S,
Office of Management and Budpet Circular A-1 33, Audity of States. Local Governments, and non-Profir
Crganizations and are not a required part of the basic financial statements, The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them,

Panama City, Florida

December 18, 2003 EE ;,: E : ﬁfﬂ' .;" 5:7



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

The City of Panama City’s Management Discussion and Analysis provides an overview
of the City’s financial sctivities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. The
discussion and analysis focuses on significant financial issues and should be read m
conjunction with the Transmittal Letter beginning on page "i" and the City's financial
statements beginning on page 14.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

F

k)

b

Total assets exceed total liabilities in the amount of $108,552,423. Governmental
activities include $24.412,458 in unrestricted net assets and $16,089,885 in restricted
net assets. For business-type activities unrestricted net assets total $21,530,837 and
restricted net assets total $3,684 438,

The increase in total net assets of the City is $1,930,097. The governmental activities
increased by $2,735,387 and the business-type activities decreased by $805.290.
Owverall, the City's financial position improved during fiscal year 2003,

The governmental activities revenue increased by $1.4 million {5%) and the business-
type activities revenue increased by $333,083 (3%).

The povernmental activities expenses increased by $3.5 million (13%) and the
business-type activities expenses increased by 1.4 million (11%). The governmental
activities increases are comprised of $1.2 million in public safety, which includes
$498.000 in police and fire pension increases, $254.843 in payroll and other payroll
related expenditures, and $277,034 in police liability insurance. Transporiation
projects cxpenses increased by $1.6 million, with the remaining amounts of
approximately $350,000 each were in general government and culture/recreation

projects.

Increases in expenses of the business-type activities of 1.4 million were due largely
10 increased operating expenses, The marina fund increase of over $300,000 was due
to the purchase of merchandise, which was offset by the associated revenues., Other
operating increases were reported in the Solid Waste Fund's other contractual
services accounts for the inereased cost of tipping fees mandated by the County of
Bay, and in the Utilities Fund's other contracival senvices account.

At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance (the amount available to
mest ongoing obligations 1o citizens and creditors) in the peneral fund was
$18,528,688, of which $4 million is scheduled to fund capital projects during 2004.

The City of Panama City’s total debt increased by §3.020,000 during the cument
fiscal vear. Utilities Fund bonds were issued in the amount of $11,440,000, of which



$7.380,000 refunded the outstanding 1993 bonded debt, and the memaining
§4,060,000 will be used for the Panama City North sewer force main construction.
Principal payments in the amount of §1 040,000 were also made during the year.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This year's annual report is very different from those in prior years due to the
implementation of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's Statement #34. The
Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City
of Panama City's basic financial statements. The financial statements comprise three
components:  a) governmeni-wide financial statemernty beginning on page 14, b) fund
financial statements beginning on page 17, and ©) notes fo the financial statements
beginning on page 28. This report also containg other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statemenis are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City of Panama City's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business. They are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, which accounts for all
of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is paid or received.

The statement of net assels presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as nel assers. Over time, increases and
decreases in the net asscts are indicators of whether the City's financial position is
improving or deteriorating. Assets, liabilities, and net assets are reported separately for
governmental activities and business-type activities. Capital assets and long-term debt of
ihe governmental activities are included in the financial statements for the first time.

The statement of activiries reports all of the City’ s revenues, eXpenses, and changes in net
asspts for the fiscal vear. Both governmental and business-type activities are presented to
summarize the gross and net cost of various City functions. Governmental activities
nelude administration, police, fire, public works, parks, and recreation. Costs of
povernmental activities are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues,  Business-type activities include water and sewer utilities, solid waste, and
marina operations. Costs of business-type activities are supporied by user charges and
fees.

Component units are presented in separaie columns in the government-wide financial
statemnents. The Panama City Downtown Improvement Board and the Panama City Port
Authority are legally separate entities over which the City, which is the primary
government, may exercise influence or may be obligated to provide financial subsidy, A
complete set of each entity’s financial statements may be obtained separately.



Fund Financial Statements

The financial activities of the City arc recorded in separate funds. Funds are groupings of
related aceounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for
specific activities or objectives. All of the funds of the City of Panama City can be
divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.
Traditional users of povermnmental financial staiements will find the fund financial
statements presentation more familiar. The focus is on major funds, rather than (the
previous financial reporting model’s) fund types.

(Fovernmental funds are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement
focus. Unlike the povernment-wide fnancial statements, governmental fund hnancial
statemnents foeus on near-ferm tnflows and ourflows of spendable resources, as well as
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year, Such information
may be useful in evaluating a pgovernment’s near-term financing requirements,
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
povernmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the
povernmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate a
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Panama City maintains ten governmental funds. The General Fund,
Community Planning and Development Special Revenue Fund, Capital Improvement
Bonds of 2001 Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund are considered to be
major funds. Therefore, a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances are presented beginning on page 17. Data from the other six
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining
statements elsewhere in this repor.

The City of Panama City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonsirate
compliance with this budget.

Proprietary find financial statements can be found beginning on page 22. The City of
Panama City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enferprise finds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. They include the Utilities Fund, Scolid Waste Fund, and the
Marina Fund. All are considered to be major funds of the City. Ifernal service fimds
account for the financing of peods or services provided by one department to other
departments of the City. The funds maintained by the City include the equipment
maintenance, medical, and dental insurance funds. Because these services
predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within the povernmental activities in the government-wide financial statements,



Propristary funds provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The internal service funds are combined into a single,
agerepated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere

in the report.

Fiduciary fundy are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. They are not reflected in the govemment-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Panama
City’s own programs. The accounting for those funds is much like that wsed for
proprietary funds. The City's fiduciary funds include Police and Fire Pension Funds, and
can be found beginning on page 26,

While the total column on the business-type fund financial statement may be the same as
the business-type column on the gpovernment-wide financial statement, the governmental
funds total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement focus
{current financial resources versus total cconomic resources) which is reflected on the
related reconciliations. The povernment-wide financial statements include all assets and
liabilities of the City in the statement of net assets, and depreciation on capital assets is
included in the statement of activities. The povernmental fund fnancial statements,
however, do not include capital assets and long term obligations in the statement of net
assets. And, rather than depreciation of capital assets in the statement of activities,
expenditures for capital assets are reported, as well as principal payment of debt.

The notes fo the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and fund financial
statements,

Chther informarion in addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes
mncludes Police and Fire Pension funding obligations in the regquired supplemeniary
information beginning on page 74. The combining statements referred to earlier in
connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds are presented
immediately following the required supplementary information beginning on page 77.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assels may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City of Panama City, assets exceeded liabilities by
$108,552,423 at the close of the most recent fiscal vear.

The City's investment in capital assets (39%) includes land, buildings, machinery,
equipment, and infrastructure {except for bridges, which will be included in the 2004
report) net of any related outstanding debt used 1o acquire those assets.  The City of
Panama City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
ussets are mof available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital



assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used 1o
liquidate these liabilities. Unrestricted net assels, those available to meet the City's
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, comprised 42% of net assets.

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
Governmental Business-typs
Activities Activities Tatal

Current and other assats §43,302,763 526,/ 36,252 §70,038,115
Capital assats 41,918,737 43,016,068 84,934 805
Unamortizad bond issus cosis ol B0Z 268 B0Z2, 2608

Tolal assets B5.221,500 70,554,668 155,776,188
Long-term liabilities outstanding 18,868,660 23,644 409 42,713,069
Other fiabilities 3,031,760 1,478,936 4,510,686

Total liabilties 21,900,420 25,323,345 47,223,765
Met assatls!
Invested in capital assels, nat
of related debt 22 818,737 20,016,068 42 34,805
Restricted 16,080,885 3,684 438 16,774,323
Unrestricted 24,412,458 21,530,837 45,043 285

Total net assets $63,321.080 545,231,343 108,552,423

A comparative analysis of government-wide data will be presented in future years.

An additional portion of the City's net assets (18%) represents resturces that are subject
1o external restrictions on how they may be used,

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all
{hree categories of net assets, bath for the government as a whole, as well as for its
separate governmental and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the
prior fiscal year.

The City's total net assets increased by $1,930,097 during fiscal year 2003
Governmental activities increased by $2,735,387 due 1o operating transfers in from the
business-type activities of $4,221,749. Without the transfers, governmental activities
would have cxpetienced a decrease of $1.486362 due Lo expenditures for capital
projects, Business-type activities nei asscls had an increase of $3,416,459 before
operating transfers out. Transfers out to the governmental activities in the amount of
$4.221,740 resulted in a decrease in net asscts of S8035,200,



Key elements of the increases and decreases are as follows:

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2003

Program Revenues:
Charges for services-govemmenial
Charges for services-ulilities
Charges for services-solid washa
Charges for services-mannas
Operaling grants and confributions
Capital grants and canfributions
General Revenues:
Taxss.
Ad valorem texas
Gasg fax
Franchise fees
LHility sernvice {axes
Communications senvice taxes
Licensas and panmils
State revenue sharing
Half cent sales tax
Impacl fees
Investmeant eamings
Dther general revenues
Total Revenues

Expenses

Genera! Govemmeant

Public Safety

Transporiation

Ecanamic Environment

Human Servicas

Culture/Recrastion

Int2rast cn long-t=rm debi

Dther

Litiities

Sofid waste oparabions

Marinas operations

Total Expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets
before transfers

Transfers

Increase (decrease) in net assets
MNet assets October 1, 2002
Met assets September 30, 2003

A comparative analysis of government-wide data will be presented in future years.

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

. $2,280,280 52,280,280
310,852,751 10,852,751
4,837,081 4,837 081
2.475,306 2,476,396
639,338 538, 338
820,785 920,785
8,700,104 6,700,104
1,151,270 1,469,270
1,374,503 1,374,503
2871193 2671193
=1 3 i 2681777
T 557,78 7,997,776
1,115,624 1,115 624
2,739,453 2,730,453
412,070 412,070
184,730 335,334 530,064
1,764,642 1,784,642
31,821,485 18.013,632 50,835,117
8,485,056 B.485,056
13,257 184 13,267,184
6,360,082 6,360,082
G88,504 688,504
142, 356 142 358
2.883.670 2 BB3ET0
1,292,359 1,292,350
158,636 198,635
B 605 324 8,805,224
3,747 760 3,747,750
i 2,244,094 2,244 084
33207 84T 15,597,173 48 9056 020
-1.4B6,362 3,416,458 1,830,087

4221749 -4 221,748
2 736,387 -505, 28 1.830. 047
60,585,693 45,036,633 106,622 326
#03,321 050 245,231,343 5108552 423

Y 4



Revenues by Source - Governmental Actlvities
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Revenues by Source- Business-type Activities
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Licenses and permits are the larpest revenue source in the governmental activities (23%),
followed by ad valorem taxes (21%). Expenses in the government activities are highest
in the public safety category (40 %), followed by general government (26%) and
transportation (19%%).

Charges for services in the business-type activities are the major source of revenue
(96%). Water and sewer utilities have the highest revenue and expenses, followed by
solid waste, then marina operations.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

The focus of the City's govermmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources,

The gereral fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Panama City. During fiscal
year 2003, the fund balance increased by $4,409.236. The increase was largely due 1o
increases in ad valorem taxes, electric utility services taxes, commumication services
taxes, merchant license fees, and half cent sales taxes. The largest increase of $500,000
was in the communication services taxes. Expenditures, although £1.8 million more than
the prior fiscal year, were lower than expected due to the carry-forward of various
projects into the 2004 fiscal year.

During fiscal year 2003, the Community Planning and Development fund balance

A



increased by $133,243. This special revenue fund accounts for revenues received from
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the State Housing
Initiatives Partnership Program. Revenues are restricted to accomplishing the vanious
objectives of the Community Planning and Development Program.

Debt services funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
pavment of pencral long-term principal and interest for the City's general bonded debt.
Only the 2001 A & B Bond Debt Service Fund is considered a major fund due 1o the
balance of $9 million of cash, of which $8.7 is held in escrow for repayment of the
refunded bonds, The total of the debt service funds® balances remained essentially the
same as fiscal year ended 2002 and all principal and interest payment obligations were
met in a timely manner, Payments for general bonded debt are funded by transfers from
the City’s general fund.

The City utilizes a Capital Projects fund to account for projects in the governmental
activities costing over $25,000. During the 2003 fiscal year, the fund balance decreased
by $3,227,437. The City carried forward $4.4 million of projects into fiscal vear 2004
and budgeted an additional $3 million for a total of $7.4 million for fiscal year 2004
Transportation and drainage improvement projects of $4.3 million top the list, followed
by $1.2 million in general povernment that includes renovations 1o City Hall. Capital
projects are funded by transfers from the general fund. A budgeted transfer from the
General Fund to the Capital Projects fund is scheduled for fiscal year 2004 in the amount
of $4 million.

The City of Panama City's praprictary funds provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Unrestricled net assets
of the Utilities Fund, the Solid Waste Fund, and the Marina fund were $16,033,129,
$3.973.636, and 51,524,072 respectively, The Utilities fund experienced an increase in
net aseets of §1 million. However, the Solid Waste Fund net assets decreased by 31.6.
During the fiscal vear $2 million was transferred to the capital project fund to fund a
storm debris removal contingency account. The Marina Fund also experienced a
decrease in net assets of $170,645.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The difference between revenues in the general fund original budget and the final
amended budget was a $2,000 increase. The amended budget contained an additional
$1.807.613 in expenditures from the original budget. The majority of the expenditures
were encumbrances carried forward from fiscal year 2002 in the amount of 31,116,681,
Another $207.726 provided a bonus for City employees termed “gain-shanng™, based on
the amount of budgeted funds saved during the previous fiscal year. Other major
amendments included $204.12%9 in additional costs for the police pension fund, 5190,693
in additional costs for the fire pension fund, $112.000 for workers compensation
insurance, $94,610 for supplies to be offsct by corresponding grant revenues, 540,000 for
the General Employees Pension Fund, $50,000 for a storm water project, 530,000 for
beautification of the entrance to the airport, $128,215 for purchases of land and/or related
costs, such as appraisals and taxes, and $35,000 in attorney fees. Other than the $94,610
funded by grants, the amounts were budgeted from available fund balance. During the

=



year, however, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates and expenditures were Jess than
budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to draw upon existing fund balance.

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities
as of September 30, 2003, amount to $84.934 805 {net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital asseis includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and
cquipment, park facilities, roads and drainage systems. Bridges will be included in the
fiscal year 2004 report. Additional information regarding the City’s capital assets may be
found in the notes to the financial statements on page 41.

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of depreciation)
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
Governmerital Businesg-lypea
Activitias Activites Total
Land 56,003,288 3212263 352158 551
Buildings 10,729,406 =5.326 10,758,732
Improvemenis cther
than buildings 2,798,748 38,704, 185 42 503,933

Machinery and equipment 4,309,012 3,070,284 7. 370308
Infrastructure, excluding bridges 18,077,283 18,077 283
Tatal 541,818 737 43 016,068 284,934 BD5
Debt Management

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of 542,100,000,
This debt amount represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources. All of
the City's debt maintains a “AAA™ rating from Standards & Poor's and a “Aaa” rating
from Moody's Investors Services, Additional information regarding the activities of the
City’s bonded debt during fiscal vear 2003 may be found in the notes to the financial
statements on beginning on page 46.
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Ouistanding Bonded Debt As Of September 30, 2003

Govermnmental Business-iype
Activities Activities Tolal
19,100,000 523,000,000 542,100,000
(her Information

The unemployment rate for the Bay County area was 6,2%, which is higher than the state
of Florida's average rate of 4.7%. This is largely due to the seasonal nature of the tounst
local economy, New business openings and expansion of existing businesses are
scheduled for the coming year and are expected to have a positive impact on the area's
employment rate,

Thiz report was prepared by the Accounting Division of the City of Panama City under
the direction of the City Clerk-Treasurer. Questions conceming this report or requests for
additional information should be addressed to Michael Bush, City Clerk-Treasurer, P.O.
Box 1100, Panama City, Florida 32402-1880.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

Statemant of Mot Assets
Soptember 30, 2003
Primary Crovernmemi Compozent Unris
Dosamiwn PFanema City
Governmented  Busines=-type Improvement Ton
ACViES Actrviling Tipzal Boerd Auihority
§ 57545880 § 15EGN5E 0§ S343604T 0§ 793331 0§ 4444344
20503 20500 2 HHLO146
13,056 1,71 ElD 1 B0 500 I 470,301
127,264 15 508 ]t s
133 {13%) L]
ET 432 ET 412 32,053
TAEAST S9E 457 5380
TR 252 119,704 197,958 TiE
and
3,502,503 E,S02,203 13 N
&1.660
4 H27 %4 & 27,134 43351
6005 288 213,363 6,214,551 5,172 11,641.9T0
15,015,449 42,303 505 TE719,254 =.963,057 275,00
300 348 BGI 268
5 321, 500 EEEI 155,776, |43 -I'-I,ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ lﬁ‘_ﬂ_r:?.“.’n
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Frogram Reventes
Operating Capatal
Charges for Granis and {Fraris 2nd
Expenseg Services Contribations _Contributions
Functions Programs
Primary gevernment;
Crvernment activities:
Gencral povernment 5  BABS.056 5 1,540,002
Public safety 13,257,184 175 468 5 106357 % 4,414
Tramsportation 6,360,082 3Tr 555
Economic envirenment aRE S04 137970 96,331
Culiire and recreation 2 BE3.6TD I1RE. 202
Fumaon services 142,356 13,065 275,000
Onhes 198,636 21,200 59,689
Interest on long=term debi 1,292 359
Total povernmental activities 31,307,847 2 2R 2RO 634 338 RN TOS
Buosineas-type activities:
Utilities 9605, 329 10,852 751
Salld Wasts 3,747,750 4,937,081
Miring 2,244,054 2ATEING
Total business-tvpe activities 15,597,173 | B.2606, 208 1] ]
Taolal primary poverament dﬁ%ﬁi’u EUEHE-,EDF: fAE 3R JnITDj
Component units:
Diewmdowm Improvement Board i 774,700 5 539,120
Panama City Port Authority 4354554 5291466 5 BM4E09 5 313195
Taal component wmits 5 5129394 % 5830586 5 B74.EDS S 313155
Creneeral revenuies:
Tanes:
Ad valirem taxes
Ciax toy

Fronchiue fmes
Litilaty service
Commumications service tox
S1ate revenue sharing
Huolf-cent sales iy
Licensss and permils
Impact fees
Investment samings
Miscellanenys
Transfers
Teaal peneral revenues and transfers
Change in net asssts
el nsgets — beginning of vear

Ned asaets - end of vear

Sea the accompanying nofes,
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Het (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Met Asseis

Primary Government Compoanent Units
Diowntown Panamn City
Gavemmental Business-1vpe [mprovement Port
Activities Activities Tolal Board Autharity
5 [(6,945,054) 5 {£,945,054)
(12.970,855) [ 12,970, 855)
(6,037,527) (6,037,527}
365,797 365,797
(2,685,378) (2,685,37H)
145,729 143,729
(47,747 47,747
(1,202,339) {1.293.354)
(25,467 434) ] [0 (20,467,434} 5 1 5 ]
1,247.422 1,247,422
I 183,331 I, 188,331
T3z 302 232,302
] 2,608,053 2,660,055 ] 1]
(29,467.434) 1,664,055 (26,798 37 i 1]
§ (2355800
5 4.4143.632
5 (235580} 5 4,943,632
——— S — =
6,700,104 f, 700, 104 508,652
1,151,200 1,151,270
1,374,503 1,374,503
671,193 2,671,153
1,691,777 2,691,777
1115624 1,115624
2730453 2,730 451
1.357,776 1557776
412,070 412070
194,730 3353704 S30,064 T A
1. THd, 642 1,754,642
4,221,145 (4.221.749) 1]
31302521 13.474,345) 28,728 4Th 508692 T4 450
P EE R ¥l (H03,250) 1,530,097 Ira.niz 50E,131
0,385,653 45,036,633 106,622, 526 4,254 469 35313295
3 63321080 | 5 43331343 5 10E557.423 e iS2T 8 5 40,331,426

See The accompanying nNoies.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
Balance Shest
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2003

Sgecial Dichi
Ceemrral ievenne Bervice
Cuapatnl
Cinmmnmity lmprovemeni
Flanniug ssd Bouds
Generul D elopmewt ol 1
ASEETS —_———
Cah and ceh équrmnlens ¥ OIE.254.831 £ LaEs 313 F 9 gss
Investmienis 20,505
Becemuhles, net
Aroounis 11357
Special Assmssmeniz TS, 136 31,138
D from inther funda 508
Recenables Bom ofier pnemments g dng
Prepaid sxpenses ET 437
Enenlories A8 540
Mies recervahle 4330 4 B3 413
Tainl assis R L BB, 041 ¥ 63I0TeE % B'.I:I.Hd.ﬂ-
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Lizhilities:
Aieeomits ayuhlz ¥ ildde: % T4
1nee 1y other funds 17,631
Duie to oth= govemmenial entzizs 4[4 850
Accrued weges pmyahle S
Accrusd olther Eabdniss 206, 85T
i 1,071
Tutal Tinkilities 639,353 apweid 3 il
Fiind habinces
Reperved for;
Noncurest lnans roceivahle i, 0 ESE
Capeital projects
[eht servics 1,765,812
Linreserved, repaned in:
Creneral Fund 18,528 652
Specml revenne funds [MEE L) v
Diehl service funds 157573
Capital pregecis funds
Total fend balgocrs I8 538 Gk 520 Ral) 9035 455
Tatsl llabilitics and Ffund halamees £ 9 L3% 041 5 E]EIT{FI- i PO2T 458

Soe the accompanying noles,
|7
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Frojects Funds
£ 5516733 $ 160058
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T.TI%
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T IT6. T
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R 01 i A
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e dilferent because:
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Special LT
Ceenzral Revemus Serviee
Cagpital
Community Improvemeni
Flanning and Bonds
General Development of 2001
REVENUES
Taxes ¥ 14 5BE 84T
Licenses and permits 1.357.976
Inlergovernmental £113.530 % 916,331
Charges [or s=rvices 1,144 8o8
[nvesiment eamings 18,131 5 3,039
Mizllaneous 0% 403 1,444
Total revenues 7,998 516 935,906 1,039
EXPFENDITURES
Corrent:
Geneml povemment 4, 1,122
Public safety 12072872
Transportation 4,033 301 55,045
Economic emvironmeri 371618 16,885
FHuman services 142 356
Culture and necrestbon 2.2 001 47,000
Drebd service:
Prim:ipal
Iriesest nod other charges 363,754
Capital oulay
Total expenditures 23015270 418,931 363,754
Exeess (duficiency) of revenwps
over expendiiures 4,083,246 J16.9T5 [360.715)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Tranzlers in 2.431,734 362,643
Translers oul 2595, 744} (383, 732)
Ciomtribution Lo ather government
Total pther finoncing seureds and uses (574,000} (3E3,732) 362643
Met chasge in fund balances 4,409,216 133,243 1.92%
Fund Bolances:
Beginning of year 14,118,452 . TaT 597 2021527
End of vear § IEEZRAGEE 5 SODOR4D 5 0033499

2= e accompanying notes
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Capital

Frojects Non-Major
Dther Thotal
Cnpital Gevernmenial Governmential
Prujects + Funds Funds
5 14,588 847
7,557,976
s 494 634 5504 405
40,716 1,185,584
137,141 5,101 184,002
13,685 86,102 654,726
171,426 626,543 297315 430
4,104,132
12072671
o ek S078.171
BEE 504
142,356
238,00
1,000 100, 030
DIEG03 1,292.359
4 553 482 4 552 482
5,542 307 1, 868 605 31 308 BT
{5,370,881) (1,342, 06T} [1.573.437
2514083 1.B32 016 5,530,476
{17, 639) {1006, LB 4,556,304
{198,636} (198 636]
2143 444 [y b 2 115,536
{3.227.437) (T14.871) G2, 009
RG04 289 2 300, 204 55,814,059
5376782 5 L5B6393 £ 40416158

See e accompanying naes.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Net change in fund balances - total povernmental funds S 602,099

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because;

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense,

Expenditures for capital nssets 4 552 482
Less corrent year depreciation (3,101,816) 1,450,666

Repayment of bond prineipal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net asseis,

Principal payments 1,040,000

Some expenses reparted in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
cxpenditures in sovernmental funds.
Change in long-term compensated absences (354,746)
Transfer of capital assets 503

Internal service funds are used by management to charpe the costs of
certain activities, such as insurance and equipment maintenance, to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the intemnal service fimds

is reported with governmental activities, {3.135)
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 2.7353R7
e

See the stcompanying nates.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Met Assats

Operating Revenues:
Charpes for ssrvicss
Tap fzes and pennltics
Cotributisne
Miscellaneous
Tutal operaling revenues

Cpernling expenzes:
Personal services
Ohpratlng expenies
Inzatrance claims and expenses
Diepreciation

Tolal operating exponses
Operating income {loss)

Monoperaling revenues (expensesk
Interest and investment revenoe
lmpact fees
Interest sxpense
Orther debt serviee coste

Taotal monopernfing revennes
{expenses)
Imcome (less) belore
contributions and transfers

Operating transfers:
Transfers in
Transfars oud
Chamge in net assets

Total net nssets - bepinning of year

Total net assete - end of year

Proprietary Funds

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

Business-iype Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Salid Activities - Infermal
Utilities Wasie Maurina Totals Service Funds
10267594 5 4935231 5§ 247639 £ 1769931 5 DB5.421
284,700 284 701
1LOBR.OTY
2804546 1,Ba0 282 304G L
10,852,751 4,937,081 2. 476,356 18.206,228 2 075,337
2 633 339 1,270,916 267,661 4,170,906 271,137
4,250 533 2186741 1,626,187 B,092 461 679,510
2977571
1,562,280 309 443 250,246 2,221 509 8,044
5494 142 3,747,130 2244054 14,485,256 34936264
2358609 1189961 232302 3, THDLET2 {1,860.9327)
261, (el 51,143 23127 335334 10,71%
212,0m0) 412,070
(1,06%,265) (630} (1,065 805
{43,922} {43,922)
(438.053) 50,513 23,127 (364.413) 10718
1,920,556 . 240,474 255,429 1416459 {1,850 204}
1,881,149
{901 84 {2,893, 866} [£26,074) (4.221,749) {34.075)
{301 309) {2,893 866) {426,074} (4.221,74%) 1847074
1,018,747 {1,653392] {IT0645) (RS, 200 (3.135)
32.551.837 7450566 6,034,230 46,036,633 1,371,937
I3 5T0584 0 5 5791V % 5BA3SRES % 4533134% 0 % 1,268,792

Hea the accompanying nobes.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Fiseal Yesr Ended September 30, 2003

Dusiness=type Artivitles -

Enterprise Fumds Lovernmentsl
Activilics -
Eolid Imbernal
Lilinies Wakte Marina Todnls Servies Fundi
CASH FLOWS FROM OPFERATING ACTIVITIES
Ressifils THm SEnnmsan 3 I0BHLAM % 4922319 £ 24VAM0E £ IRIV.56R L] R4 R3O
Payments (o supplicm (001,450} (2055, 664y {1520, 1200} {7 5E7 (45} (e [
Tayments to employess (2587, 5} {1,260, %) {25E,955) (. 007, 0ad) (265,625
Cnsh recelved fowr Ensurance comiribuibces 1.QER,577
Claisns paid {1563 200)
Met enzsh previded by {mscd =} sporating actvities 4,24 934 1,406,559 676916 5,573 A5% {1 E49.29T)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPTTAL
FESANCSG ACTIVITIES
Operating iremsfers is 1,350,140
Opersting iressfers out (901 B} (2,853, E6i) (426,074} 4,221,749 {34,075}
el canh proviiled by (used in)
nincapital financisg activities (0 B0k} (2083 B66) {426,074} ol 221, TSy 1,847,074
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from capital deht 4 4RI 3Th 4,450,590
Parchases of capiinl asseis {1. 871,774} (41,50} {1 11,853) (2425021
Procesds Trom sale of eipieal ssssts 1
Principal paid on capital debi (%, M) (B35.000)
Imerest pald oo capiinl dets il,065,265) 530 (1,003 595)
[enpaet Tees 412,00 £12 67
Met ash privided by {wsed jo) capital
and related finuncing activities 1,300,407 (442.074) [11LE53) TN, 530 1,756
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interesl and dividends 260,054 51,143 23,127 135354 10,718
et ineresse [decresse) in cash and eash eguivalents 4 951 E46 (1678, 12K} 162 11& 3435574 11271
Balances - begimning of the year L4451 708 5542034 1,359, 054 21353 g7 15946 6B 1
Islamces - emd of che yesr 3 [2403355 5 1RSI RDS 0§ 1A2LRI0 % HI'.'EHJ £ 1, 70749452

Sas B RECoimpanyTy notes,
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Rusiness-type Activities -

Enterprise Fusili Governmenial
Activities -
Golid Tntrrual
Liiilitizs W sl Murinn Tidals Servicr Fumils

Resoncibation af operuting isorme (fuss) to net cash
previded by {wsed im) operating activities:
Dipezating Income [Joss) § 2356609 % IR0l § 23232 5 RTa0872  § [1.BAILYT)
Adjestmenis 0 reconcike sperming mcome 1o el cesh
provided by (used I} operating aciivisies:

Dieprecintion expomie 1,562 2 09,463 350,246 e 1 2,06
hnnge in assele and lohilsies:

Recelvables, nel (T 215) (30,41TH R251 (E9.551) 415

Dhie fromm other Fands 13.ER4 32,730 410 50,024

D from pifser goyvemmeniul unks {1.955)

Invepiories 4,159 4,159 (5,802}

Accounts and ather payihles 5,134 &1,121 H3.530 340385 L5186

Agerued expenses (36,050 ) 26,951 1795 (i 34.5)

Accrued interest (115202} (520

Compensaleil shsences B 431 0451

lspmemce coe poysble 21,520 11,520

Dhae b0 oither fumds [e13 T LAGT

Thepersits 23,034 15,665 34 30,453

Deferred revenus (0.533) (9.933} 5511
Wet canh jirivided by {wved |n}

operalisg actvicies 5§ 4Ioiopd § 1GO6SSE § BTLUIG 5 ASTSEST 5 (1LBARITH

Reconsiliatien of Cash anid Cash
Equivaleats per Statement of Cazh
Fhiws in the Siatement of Net Asselss

Cash and casli equivalenls £ 1030605 5 3EALEO6  § 1,52LF10 5 |SB3GNSH 5 L0795
Reairicied caih and cesl eguiyaisnis
Tinpimct foe nosoues 2,613,081 2613,681
Cash with fiscal agent 454 114 454 G0
ftewenur bond - fiture debt noserve pocounts 4EE 521 SEE, 521
Revenue hond cortingency accoum 3,095,917 1005,817
Comitnietl o acooani 1 103454 2,104,450
Tutnal caph and cash cquivabesis § 19403355 § EA3E0G § 1831200 5 24 73Aa) b

Ean |he acoompaiying nojes.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2003

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Deferred revenue

Accrued payroll deductions and matching
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits and
other purposes

Pension
Funds

§ 38,864,262

38,804,262

2178
32,458

34,636

§ 38829626

Sea the accompanying notes.

26

$

3

Agency
Funds

13593

71.593

?:5 93
7.593



CITY OF PANAMA CITY FLORIDA
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2003

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
State
Plan membears
Other
Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest
Total investment earnings
Less investment expense
Net investment earnings

Total ndditions

DEDUCTIONS

Benefits

Refunds of contributions

Administralive expenses
Total deductions

Change in net assets

MNet Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits:

Beginning of the vear

End of the year

&g the accompanying noles.

Pension
Trust

$ 1,065,765
567,821
316,738

7.453

195 TTT

2,645,329
1,273,685

3.919.514
(363,655)

3,555 859

3,313,636

(1,748,307)
(838.010)
(7.433)

(2,593,750}

2019,886

35,909,740

5 38829 626




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Panama City, Florida was created in 1925 by a Special Act, Chapter 11678, No. 343 of the
Florida State Legislature. The City was incorporated March 12, 1926, and is a palitical subdivision of
the State of Florida. The City provides police and fire protection, general government, parks and
recreation, health and social services and public works services to its residents. In addition, the City
operates water and sewer, solid waste, and marina cnterprises. It also maintains various trust funds in a
fiduciary capacity.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmentzl Accounting
standards Board (GASE) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting. Pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November
30, 1989 are not applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the proprietary fund types in
accordance with GASE Statement 20. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the existing
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASB
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for povernmental units. The more
sipnificant of these accounting policies are described helow.

In Jupe 1999, the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) unanimously approved "Basic
Financial Statemenis and Management Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Govemments”
(Statement 34). This Statement provides for the most significant change in financial reporting in over
twenty vears and is scheduled for & phased implementation (based on size of government) starting with
fiscal years ending 2002 (for larger governments). The City implemented the basic model for September
30, 2003, As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the local
government's infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc)), This requirement permits an optional
four-year further delay for implementation. The City has implemented the infrastructuré-related portion
for all infrastructure except bridges for the current fiseal year and plans 1o add the bridges by September
10, 2004,

Reporting Entity. The City is a Florida municipal corporation with a five-member City Couneil
comprised of the Mayor (elected at large) and four district Commissioners, In evaluating the City as a
reporting entity. management has addressed all potential component units (traditionally separate
reporting entities) for which the City may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be
includable within the City's financial statements. The following criteria are considered in cencluding
which related activities (component units) should be included in the City's combined financial
SEAlements:

Financial accountability;

Appointment of a voting majority;

Imposition of will;

Financial benefit to or burden on a primary government; and

Financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency.

- ® ® w @
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Section 2100, "Defining the Reporting Entity" of the "Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Keporting Standards" published by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, as
amended by Governmenial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, was reviewed (o
determine whether the following local governmental entities should be included in the City's
combined financial statements.

The accompanying combined financial siatements include all funds, account groups, boards and
authorities for which the City 15 financially accountable or for which the nature and sipnificance of
their relationship with the City is such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete. The following component units were included, by discrete presentation
for 2003, based upon the eriteria noted above:

+ Panama City Downtown Improvement Board
» Panama City Port Authority

Governmental Fund Type

Panama City Downtown Improvement Board. The Panama City Downiown Improvement Board
was incorporated on July 5, 1974, by House Bill No. 4094 enacted by the legislature of the Siate of
Flonda. This act provided for the establishment of a special taxing district under Article V11, Section
9 of the Florida Constitution. On November 22, 1983, the City of Panama City adopted ordinance
Mo. 1133 designating the Panama City Downtown Improvement Board as the Community
Redevelopment Agency pursuant 1o Flonda Statute 163.357(3). The members of the governing
board of the Downtown Improvement Board are appointed by the City Commission. The City also
has the authority to levy ad valorem taxes of up to 3 mills for Downtown Improvement Board
Dhstrict operations.

Proprietary Fund Type

Panama City Port Authority. The Panama City Port Authority is a Dependent Special District
created under Special Act 1945, Chapter 23466. The members of the governing board of the Port
Authority are appointed by the City Commission. Operational and capital budgets of the Fort
Authority must be approved by the City Commission.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained directly from their
administrative offices.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Administrative Ofhces:

Panama City Downtown Improvement Board Panama City Port Authority
204 Harrison Avenue 5321 West Highway 98
Panama City, Florida 32401 Panama City, Florida 32401

GASB statcment 14 requires reasonable separation between the Primary Government and its
discretely presented component units, both in the financial statements and in the related notes and
reguired supplementary nformation. Because the discretely presented component units, although
legally scparate, have been and are operated as if each is part of the pnmary government, there are
limited instances where special note reference or separation will be required. If no separate note
reference or categorization is made, the user should assume that information presented is equally
applicable.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e,, the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, arc reported separately from business-Dpe activities, which rely 1o a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally scparate component wiils for which the primary government is
financially aceountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree {o which the direct expenses of a piven function
or segment are offsct by program revenues. Direc! expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges 1o cuslomers or applicants
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, sarvices, or privileges provided by a given
function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes und other items not properly included
among program revenues are reported instead us gereral revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietery funds, and fiduciary
funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separaic
columns in the fund financial statements.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Measurement focus, basis of aceounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
Jocus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues ore recorded when carned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, Property taxes are recognized as revenues in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current fimancial resources
measurement focus and the modified acerual basis of accounting. Reévenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter 1o pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues 1o be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and Judpgmetits,
are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered 10 be susceptible to acerual and so have been recopnized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when eash is received b v the government,

"The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund,

The special revenue fund - Community Planning and Development is used to account for revenues
received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development, Funds were also received
from the State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program. Revenues are restricted to accomplishing
the various objectives of community development programs,

The debt service fimd - Capital Improvement Bonds of 2001 accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of
the 2001 bonds.

The capital projects fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities {other than those financed by proprietary funds).

=, |



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The wility fund is used to account for activities related to reiail wtility operations.
The solid waste fund is used to account for activities related to retail solid waste operations.
The maring fund 15 used 1o account for activitics related to retail marina operations.
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fundy account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
to other departments of the Cily.

Pension Trust and Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations and other governmental units,

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the povernment-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Agcounting Standards Board. Governments also have the eption of following subsequent private-
sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.
The povernment has elected not 1o follow subsequent private-sector puidance.

As a peneral rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statemenis. Exceptions o this general rule are pavments-in-licu of taxes and other charges
between the government's water and sewer function and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various funclions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges 1o customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenyes rather than as program revenues. Likewize, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish eperating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering poods
in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the utility, solid waste and marina enterprise funds, and of the government's internal
service funds are charges 1o customers for sales and services. The utility fund also recognizes as
operating revenue tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.
Operating expenses for emterprise funds and intemnal service funds include the cost of sales and
sarvices, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and cxpenses.

o



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity
Depasits and invesiments

The government's cash and cash equivalent are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments for the government, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value. The
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations.
The reporied value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares,

Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds" (i.e., the cumrent portion of
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).
All other ouistanding balances betwesn funds are reported as "due toffrom other funds". Any
residual balances outstanding between the povernmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances®.

MNotes, assessments and accounts receivable are charged to bad debt expense as they are deemed
uncollectible.

The property tax revenues calendar is as follows:

Lien date January 1 Payment due by March 31
Levy date Okctober 1 Delinguent date April 1
Tax bill mailed November 30 Tax sale-delinquent property tax  June 1

The County Tax Collector collects property taxes on behalf of each municipality within the county
boundaries. By May 31 during each year for which taxes are levied, all taxes have been collected
and remitied to the City or the delinquent taxes are raised by public auction of tax certificates and the
proceeds are remitted to the City shortly after the certificates are sold. Because of this arrangement
there are no material unremitted tax revenues for each fiscal year on September 30.

e



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Inveniories and prepaid ftems

All inventories are valued al cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certlain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial siatements,

Restricted assels

Certain assets of the Enterprise Funds are required by resolution to be set aside and used for specific
purposes: thus, they are not available for general operating purposes, These restricted assets consist
of cash in variows bank accounts and are recorded at cost.

Capital aysefs

Capital assets, which include property, plant. equipment, and infrastructure assets {e.g., roads,
sidewnlks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide inancial statements. Camtal assets are defined by the City as assets
with an inital, individual cost of more than 51,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
vears. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. In accordance with the four-vear optional delay for reporting infrastrueture, the City will
include hridges as part of the infrastructure in future financial statements.

The costs of normal mainienance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assels of i:lli-:i.t‘u:s&-l}l]:l-e aclhivilies 15 included
as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed. For this fiscal year, net interest cost is
considered immaterial.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asgels Years
Buildings 30
Building improvements 10
Public domain infrastructure 40
Utility Plant 40

s ystem mfrastructure 40
Machinery and Equipment St 10
Fumiture and Fixtures B
Automobiles and Trucks 5

Compensared absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements. One third of total sick leave balances of employees with ten
yedrs or more service is accrucd in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements, In accordance with GAAP, for the government funds in the fund financial statements_ all
of the compensated absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund lability and
represent a reconciling item between the fund level and government-wide presentations.

Long-term obligatiens

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations arc reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activitics, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of
the bonds using the straight line method based on the life of the bond issue. Bonds pavable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amontized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental find types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period, The face amount of debt issued is reported
as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Centinued)
Fund equity

In the fund financial stalements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance Jor amounts
that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a
specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.

LUse of Extimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Stewardship, compliance and accountability
Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for
all governmental funds and proprietary fund types. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
It is the City’s policy 1o reappropriate such amounts at the beginning of the next fiscal year.

Budgets for all funds, except pension trust funds, are legally adopted at the beginning of each fiscal
year through passage of a resolution by the City Commissioners. The level of classification detail at
which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is within a department or division by
fund.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer part or all of an unencumbered appropriation balance
among programs within a department. Management may nol increase a depariment's total
expenditures without seeking the approval of the City Commissioners, whao may amend the budget at
any time during the fiscal year. Amounts shown in the financial statements represcnt the original
budgeted amounts and all supplemental amendments. During the year, several supplementary
APPrOPrialions Were Necessary.

New Accounting Standards

Effective October 1, 2002, the City adopted the provisions of Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Starement 34, Basic Financial statements - and Management's Discussion and
Analysis - for State and Local Government; GASE Statement 37, Basic Financial Sratements - and
Management's Discussion and Analvsis - for State and Local Governments, Cmnibus; and GASB
Statement 38, Certain Financial Statements Note Disclosures. The effect of adopting GASB 34 and
37 is primarily & change in the presentation of the financial statements. The adoption of GASB
Statement 38. modifies, rescinds and establishes certain financial statement disclosure requirements,
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Under the City’s investment policy, and in accordance with Section 166.261 of the Florida Statules, the
City may invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and its agencies, interest bearing time deposits or
savings accounts in banks provided that such deposits are secured by collateral as prescribed by Chapter
280 of the Florida Statates and the State Treasurer's investment pool. No other investment types were
made by the City, during the vear, that were not held at year end,

P |

2.2

Deposits with Financial Institutions. All deposits (demand deposits and certificates of deposits)
are carried at cost or amortized cost plus accrued interest At September 30, 2003, the carrving
amount of the City deposits was $13.802_168 and the bank balance was %] 2,856,294, The bank
balance was fully insured; thus, being insured by federal depository insurance or under the
Multiple Financial Institution Collateral Pool administered by the State of Florida.

Investments.
Primary Government:

The City's investments at September 30, 2003, are summarized and categorized under GASE
Statement Mo, 3 guidelines in the following table to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed. Category | includes investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the
City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments
for which the securities are held by the counter-party’s trust department or agent in the City's
name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held
by a counter-party or by its trust department or agent, but not in the City's name.

Investments in the State Treasurer's Investment Pool and investments in the Florida Municipal

Trust are not categorized ag they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form.

iy



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Calegory Carrying Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value

.5, Govemment

Securities 540,093,338 340,003,338 § 40,093,338
Investmenis in State

Treasurer's Investment

Pool 15,698 15,608
Investment in a Repurchase

Apreement Pool backed

with LS. Government

Becuritics 3 B4553242 B.455.242 8455242
Total Investments 48,364,278 48,564,278
Total Deposits _13.802.168 _ 13.R02.168
Total Deposits and Investments $62366,446 § 62,366,446

The amounts shown above include restricted amounts in the Enterprise Funds of $9,453,327 in the U.S.
Government Securities and include amounts in the agency fund of $7,593,

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investiment Pool contained no derivative investments
a5 defined under GASE Technical Bulletin No. 94-1. The City had a range of $15.5 thousand 10 $15.7
thousand in the pool from Qctober 1, 2002 to September 30, 2003. Various risk disclosures as they
related specifically to derivatives were not made available in the vear-end financial statements provided
by the State Board of Administration. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value
of the pool shares. Regulatory oversight for the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is
governcd by Ch, 19-7 of the Flonda Administrative Code, which identifies the Rules of the State Board
of Administration. These rules provide guidance and establish the peneral operating procedures for the
administration of the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Additionally. the Office of the
Auditor CGeneral performs the operational sudit of the activitizs and investments of the State Board of
Administration,



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Firemen and Policemen Pension Investmenty - Statutes authorize the Board of Trustees of the firemen
and policemen pension funds to invest in stocks, bonds or other securities and properties as it deems
appropriate, The investments are held in the bank trust department and are not registered in the City's
name (category three investments in accordance with GASB Statement Mo. 3),

The following is a breakdown of deposits and investments of the firemen and policemen pension funds:

Fair
— Value
Deposits:

Cash and miscellaneous cash equivalents § 4,678,070

Investments:
Common Stock 18,957,586
LS. Treasury bonds 1,871,072
Bonds and notes 4,819,407
Government agencics 8,043,992
Mutual Fund 494,135
Total 538,864,262

Component Lnits:

The Panama City Downtown Improvement Board's deposits are categorized to give an indication of
the level of risk assumed by the Board at year end. Category 1 includes deposits that are in qualified
public depositories authorized to hold public deposits by the Department of Insurance of the State of
Florida or are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Category 2 includes uninsured
and unregistered deposits held by the counter party’s trust department or agent in the Board's name.
Category 3 includes uninsured deposits not held in the Board's name. A summary of deposits by risk
category 18 as follows;

Category Carrying Fair
Description 1 2 3 Caost Value
Cash & 793331 § b § 793331 5 79333)

No investments were made by the Board during the year that were not held at Seplember 30, 2003,
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Under provision of the Panama City Port Authority's investment policy, and in accordance with
Section 166.261 of the Florida Statutes, the Port Authority may invest in obligations of the 11.8,
Treasury and its agencies, interest bearing time deposits or savings accounts in banks provided that
such deposits are secured by collateral as preseribed by Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes and the
State Treasurer's investment pool.

All deposits are carried at cost plus accrued interest. At September 30, 2003, the carrying amount of
the Port's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was 56,634,040, and the bank balance was
36,274,983, The bank balance was fully insured; thus being insured by the federal depository
insurance or insured under the Multiple Financial Institution Collateral Pool administered by the
State of Florida.

Investments held by the Porl are summarzed below. Category 1 includes investments that are
insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the Port or its agent in the Pont
Authority’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unrcpisicred investments for which the
securities are held by the bank's trust department or agent in the Port Authority's name,

Calecory REpl.‘.ll‘lt‘;'d Fair

] 2 _Amount Value

Repurchase agreements -
Cash equivalents F 463,000 5 463,000 § 463,000

NOTE 3 - NOTES RECEIVABLE

The City participates in loan rehabilitation programs thal assist low income residents in obtaining safe
and sanitary housing, businesses in downtown improvement areas and rental housing improvements,
The loans, accounted for in the special revenue fund, are due and payable at their respective maturity
dates or change of home ownership, whichever oceurs first. The City maintains a security interest in the
property. Interest rates range from non-interest bearing to 10.0 percent. These loans will mature at
various dates up to 2033,
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Capital asscts, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvemenits other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure, excluding bridge
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less secumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastrueture, excluding bridges
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
§ 3.108.724 5§ 2.894.564 £ 6,003,288
18,750,991 1,042,760 § 630845 19,162,900
9,476,646 99773 5218585 4357834
15,009,131 1,400,206 4255846 12,153.49]
37542 20 3,030,796 40.573.616
BO.779.588 Tl B 10,105.276 _ 76,247 847
7,974,959 661,545 203,044 8,433,500
1,302 578 165,508 1,558,086
6,596,557 1,268,469 20,547 7,844,479
21.481.9593 1.014.340 22495 333
17.446.137 _ 3.109.862 273,591 _ 40332398
43.333.461 2463,673 _ 9.881.6B5 _ 35915449

$46.442,185 § 5358257 § 9.8R1.685 $4191R73T



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Primary Government (Continued)

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and system

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and system
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Diecreases Balance
3 212363 rs $ 212263
39990 39.990
70937946 % 1,646,604 72,584,550
6,734,936 820.211 152,637 7402510
TLT12.RT2 2.466,815 152,637 80,027.050
9,331 1,333 10,664
31,133,452 1,746,933 32 BE0 365
3.969.306 473,723 110,813 4332216
35,112,069 2221980 110813 _ 37,223 245
42 600,803 244,826 41.824 42 803.B0O5

342,813,066 § 244826 § 41,824 § 43,016,068

Depreciation expense was charged 10 functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety

Highways and streets, including depreciation of general infrastruciure asscis

Culture and recreation

Capital assets held by the government’s internal service funds are

charged to the various functions based on their usage of the asssts

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

$ 377269
957274
1.242 889
524,384

B.046

§3.109.862




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business-type aclivities:
Uhilities
Solid waste
Marina

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

Discretely presented component units

1,562 280
308,463
350,246

£ 2221.082

Activity for the Panama City Port Authomnty for the year ended September 30, 2003, was as follows:

Capiial assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not heing depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Port Authority capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
ANGE _Increases Dgocreases Balange
£4592.778 3§ £9.470 § 4,682248
4536438 7.652.13%8 S55.238.854 £.959.722
9,129.215 7741608 5228854 11 970
27,750,175 40,188 27.790.363
6,146,795 4,784 542 10,931,337
5079009 63,935 5,142,944
18.975.979 4 BER.H6S 43.864.644
8,714,187 303,278 0.017.463
3,479,707 717.638 4,197.345
2.334.629 324,503 2,659,132
14,528,523 1.345.419 15,873,942
24447 456 3.543.246 27.990,702
$13,576.672 £112R4.854 $5228854 § 30630672
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Activity for the Panama City Downtown Improvement Board for the year ended September 30, 2003,

was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated;
Land

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings

Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and equipment

Total capital assels being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Lmprovements other than buildings
Fumniture and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Panama City Downtown Improvement Board

capital assets, net

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases  _Decroases Balance
h 906,172 5 B06.172
2,384,539 2,384,539
922,093 ¥ 302,102 1,224,195
296,779 296779
3603411 302,102 3.905,513
459657 47,879 507,536
140,641 24,272 164,913
256,063 13.064 209,127
856.361 £5.215 941,576
2.747.050 216,887 2963937

24653222 § 216887 3 387009

The City is exposed 10 various risks of loss related to torts; thefl of, damage to, and destruction of nssels;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City purchases commercial
insurance for all risks of loss except medical and dental claims of the City of Panama City emplovees
and their covered dependents, There was no significant reduction in insurance coverage during the
current year. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal

YEars.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The City has established Medical and Dental Self-Insurance Funds which are accounted for as Internal
Service Funds. The purpose of these funds is to pay medical and dental claims of the City of Panama
City employees and their covered dependents and minimize the total cost of annual insurance to the
municipality, Medical claims exceeding $100,0000 per insured and aggregale claims exceeding
$2.800,114 dre covered through private carriers. Dental claims are limited to 8750 per year [or each
insured person. Scttlement amounts have nol excecded insurance coverage for the current vear or the
three prior years.

Contributions to the self-insurance funds are determined by projected losses based on historical claims
cxpericnce. Estimated liabilities in the amount of $385,381 for claims and judpments are accrued as
liabilities of the funds. Claims liabilities are based on the estimated ultimale cost of settling the claims.
using past expenence adjusied for current trends, and any other factors that would modify past
experience. Claims liabilities include specific incremental claim adjustment expenses. Unpaid losses
pecurring prior to September 30, 2003, have been estimated and accrued at present value as a liability as
of September 30, 2003. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the fiscal years 2003 and
2002 were as follows:

Balance Current Balance
Fizcal Year Year Claims Fiscal
Beginning  and Changes Claims Year Ending
Year October 1 in Estimates _Pavments _September 30
2003 $ 373,101 § 2,409316 § 2.397.036 § 185,381
2002 124,655 2,105,560 2,057,114 173,101
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Primary Government -Governmental Activities:

Long-term obligations at September 30, 2003, includes the following bond issues:

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
1999, interest at 3.8% to 5/35%, payable
semiannually on April 1 and October 1;
principal matures serially, pavable on Qctober 1;
collateralized by a lien on and pledge of public
service tax revenue collected,

Transportation Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
1997, interest at 3.7% to 5.0%, payable
semiannually on April | and October 1:
principal matures serially, payable on October 1;
collateralized by a lien on and pledge of local
option gas tax collected.

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995,
interest at 3.65% to 5.92% payable semiannually on
April 1 and October |; principal matures serially,
payable on October 1; collateralized by a lien on
and pledge of public service tax revenue collected,

Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds,
Series 1992, interest 2.8% to 6.125% payable semi-
annually on April | and October 1; principal matures
serially. payable on October 1; collateralized by a
lien on and pledge of public service tax revenue
collected.

Authorized

And lssued

5 3,645,000

53400000

7,115,000

9,350,000

Balance
September 30,
2003

$ 3,305,000

4,455,000

615,000

1,935,000



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMEBER 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Balance
Authorized September 30,

And Issued 2003

Continued

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series
2001 A interest at 3.5% to 4.5% payable
semiannually on April 1 and October 1]
principal matores serially, payable on
October 1; collateralized by a lien on and
pledge of amounts on deposit under the
escrow deposit agreement and on excise taxes. 4,020,000 4,020,000

Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2001 B, interest 4.0% to 4.5% payable
semi-annually on April 1 and October 1;
principal matures serially, payable on October 1
collateralized by a lien on and pledge of amounts
on deposit under the escrow deposit agreement
and on excise taxes. 4,810,000 4 810,000

Taotal § 34340000 § 19100000

Agcounts required to be established and the sequence of transfers are as follows:

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1999

(2) Revenue Funds - Collection of excise taxes.

(b)  Sinking Funds - Payment of annual debt service requirements.
Transpertation Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1997

(a) Revenue Funds - Collection of local option gas tax revenues.
(b)  Sinking Funds - Payment of annual debt SErvice requirements,
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 1995

(a) Revenuc Funds - Collection of excise taxes.

(h)  Sinking Funds - Pavment of annual debt service requirements,
Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 1992
(a) Revenue Funds - Collection of excise 1axes.

(t)  Sinking Funds - Payment of annual debt service requirements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

In lieu of a reserve account, the bond ordinances authorized the purchase of Debi Service Reserve
Surety Bonds on all issues.

Primary Government -Business-Type Activities:

Long-term obligations at September 30, 2003 includes the following bond issues:
Balance
Authorized September 30,

And [ssued 2003

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds -

1996 Issue Description:

dated June 1, 1996, interest from

5.125% to 5.625%, principal payable

annually on October 1; interest payable

semiannually on April | and October 1;

collateralized by a lien on and pledge

of the net revenues of the water and

SEWET SYSiem. £ 11,560,000 £ 11,560,000
Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2003 A-

dated August 1, 2003, interest from 2.0% to 4.125%,

principal payable annually on October 1; interest

payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1:

collateralized by a lien on and pledge of the net

revenues of the water and sewer system. 6,460,000 6,460,000
Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 20038

dated August 1, 2003, interest 5.25%, principal

payable annually on October 1; interest payable

semiannually on April 1 and October 1; collateralized

by a lien on and pledee of the net revenues of the

water and sewer system. 4.980.000 — 4.980.000

Total 23000000 3 _23.000.000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2003, is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

1999 Capital Improvement
Revenue bond

1997 Transportation
Improvement Bond

1995 Capatal Improvement
Bond

1992 Capital Improvement
Revenue/Refunding Bond

2001 A Capital Improvement
Revenue/Refunding Bond

2001B Capital Improvement
RevenueRefunding Bond

Compensated Absences

Business-Type Activities:

Waler & Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bond Series
1993

Water & Sewer Eevenue
Bond, Seres 1906

Water & Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bond
Senes 2003 A
Revenue Bond Senies
2003 B

Compensaled Absences

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

-4 8-

Balance Balance Due
October 1, September 30, within
2002 Increases Decreases 2003 One Year
% 3,430,000 $ 125000 8 3305000 35 130,000
4,660,000 205,000 4,455,000 210,000
900,000 285,000 615,000 300,000
2,320,000 425,000 1,895,000 145,000
4,020,000 4,020,000 335,000
4,810,000 4. 810,000 0
807971 F 354747 1.162.718 289802
$20,947,97] 474 040,000 $20262.718 £ 1400802
¥ 7.380,000 $7.380,000 g 3 0
11,560,000 11,560,000 ]
0 56,460,000 6,460,000 100,000
0 4,980,000 4 9840, (0K 0
314,834 119,403 434257 108.559
£10.254.834 $11.559.403 $7.380,000 $23.434.237 208,55
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September 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT [Conlinued}

Bonded debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Government Activities
Capital Transportation Capital
Improvement Revenue Improvement Revenue Improvement Revenue
Yenr Ending Bomds - Series 1999 Bonds - Series 1997 Bonds - Series 1995
Sepiember 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2004 £ 130000 § 163,683 210000 5 209355 0§ 300000 § 2EZ060
2005 135,000 157,918 220,000 200,215 315,000 137,515
2000 140,000 151,798 250, 0060 1,425
2007 150,000 145,198 250, 000K 179,740
2008 155,00 138,105 250,040 I6E 450
20092013 Q00,000 565,846 1,450,000 647 4K3
20014-201% 1,150,000 A0S 6EE 1,845,000 220,375
2019-2023 545,000 29 835
§ 330500 X 1658071 § 4455000 5 1,835.083 £ 615000 § 419353
Capital Improvement Capital Improvement Cagpital fryprovement
Revenue snd Refunding Revenue and Eefunding Revenue and Refunding
Year Ending Bonds - Series 1992 Bonds - Series 2001A Bonds = Seres 20418
Sepiember 30 Principal Interest Principal Imterest Principal Interest
2004 3 145000 % 10BE7G 335000 5 155BED T L0622
2003 150 (MMy 1O 6 THN 355,000 142, (xR 2,062
20046 L0 M0 91,851 365 (M 127 680 £ 360,000 192LR62
2007 170,000 &2 136 IR0, MK 113,730 370,000 178263
2008 180,000 71,821 390,000 8g 280 385,000 163,163
H09-201 3 L 05, 0o 176,379 2,195,000 236,535 2 165 (KK} 566, 5K
Hi14-201 8 1,530 (a0 1013, B3l
% 1.895000 5 631,833 5 4020000 § 375585 $ 4810000 § 1,604,732
Business-type Activitics
Water mnd Sewer Water and Sewer Water and Sewer
Revenue Revenue Refunding Bevenoe
Year Ending Honds - 1996 Tssus Bonds - Sernes 2003A Bonds - Series 2038
September 30 Principal Inierest Principal Inierest Principal [nterest
2 § o6d42613 o0 5 176,873 5 261450
3005 642,613 E30.000 160,275 261,450
200 642,613 E50,000 143,275 261,450
2007 642,613 845,000 123 812 261,450
200% 5 435,000 B12,612 RenD 000 1] 563 261,450
2004201 3 2,720,000 2,845,679 2 535,000 273,663 1307250
2014-2078 i, 805,000 L0 529 00,000 [, 307250
01%-2023 1600, 0, Dol 54,980,000 793,275
% 11,360,000 5 7.735.272 £ 6460000 5§ 979462 £4980,000 54,715,025

ol
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

In lieu of a reserve account, the 1996 Water and Sewer Revenue Bond ordinance authorized the
purchase of a debl service reserve surely hond. The ordinance provided for the establishment and
maintenance of @ Bona Fide Debt Service Fund, The Bona Fide Debt Service Fund is designed to
achieve a proper matching of revenues and principal and interest payments within each bond vear and 15
expected to be depleted at least once cach bond year except for a rensonable carryover amount that will
nol exveed the greater of (a) the earnings on the Bona Fide Debt Service Fund for the immediately
preceding bond year, or (b) one-twelfth of the annual principal and interest payments on the bonds for
the immediately preceding bond year.

In licu of a reserve account, the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 Bond
ordinance authorized the purchase of a reserve account insurance pohcy.

Component Unit:
Panama City Port Authority
Changes in long-term debt obligation for the year ended September 30, 2003, are as follows:

Balance Balance Due
October 1, September 30,  inone
2002 Increases Dlecreases 2003 Ygar

Revenue bonds payable -

Series 1968, onginal

Amount 51,050,000,

interest at 4,75%, payable

semiannually on April 1

and October 1, principal

maturing annually on

October 1, collateralized

by net revenues, maturity

date 2007. £ 251,000 S 45000 § 206000 § i
Bank Line of Credit -

Not to exceed $7,300,000;

interest at 1.69% quarterly,

principal payments beginning

July 1, 2003, collateralized

by the pledge of the net

revenues of the

facility 1,500,000 3,500,000 i

51~
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SEPTEMEER 30, 2003

NOTE & - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Note payable - Limited

Partnership, interest at

6.0%; interest and
principal pavable at
£8,43° monthly maturing
July 13, 2010, collateralized
by a pledge of the net
revenues of the facility, 856,490

1 1107490 §3.500.000 §__ 96268 § 4511222 § 0

Provisions of the Revenue Bond Indenture for the above 1968 Series Revenue Bonds include the
establishment of a revenue fund, operation and maintenance fund, principal and interest sinking fund,
sinking fund reserve and depreciation reserve fund. Investments suthorized are 1.5, obli pations.

Balance Balance Due
October 1, September 30,  inone
2002 Increases Decreases 2003 Y ear
51 268 B5.222 ]

Bulances required by the indentures compared with actual balances at September 30, 2003, are as

follows:

Sinking Fund Reserve
Depreciation Reserve Fund
Principal and Interest Sinking Fund

Total

__Required
5 60,035

S 60,033

Excess
__Actug] (Deficiencv)
5 61,6640 3 1,625

5 61660 & 1635

Diebt service requirements to maturity for notes payable and long-term debt subsequent to September 30,
2003, are as follows:

Revenue
Year Bonds Payable Bank Line Limited Partnership
Ended Serics 1968 Of Credii MNote Payable
September 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal [nterest
2004 5 11,923 $ 39,500 5 49 095
2005 § 50,000 9,785 § 250,000 a8969 % 54430 46,813
2006 50,000 7410 500,000 32,063 ST 78T 43,476
2007 55,000 5,035 S(M,.000 43 5R2 61,352 39.91)
2008 51004} 2423 S00,000 33,063 63,136 36,127
2009-2012 o 1.750,000 55.781 266,517 53,621
$206.000 3 36576 § 3500000 §$ 304938 § 805222 § 271,963
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Panama City Downtewn Improvement Board

The City of Panama City, Florida, authorized issuance and sale of Capital Improvement Revenue and
Refunding Bonds Series 1992, dated December 1, 1992, The project description of the hond issue

included renovations of the Board's facilities known as the Martin Theatre.

The Board agreed to reimburse the City for debt service equal to $520,000 of the bond issue. The
Board's obligation to the City under this agreement is as follows:

Year Ended
September 30 Principal Interest Talal

2004 b 22,2321 3 16,792 b 32,013
2005 23.507 15,506 39.013
2005 24,860 14,144 30,013
20077 26,300 12,705 39014
2008 27,832 11,181 39,013

2009-2013 165,283 20 786 195,049
Total 8 290,021 d 100114 Bt 20, 135

The Board has no legal liability to the holders of the bonds. None of the Board's revenues are pledged
for the purpose of debt service on the bonds. The City has included all of the bond issue as long-term
debt in its general purpose financial statements and has not recorded a receivable from the Board for
advances made toward Board projects. Therefore, the bonds are not recorded as a liability on the
component unit inancial slatements,

Compensated Absences

The amount of accrued vacation pay at September 30, 2003, is as follows:

Primary Component
Current Long-Term Government Unit
Portipn Portion Tota] Total
Governmenial funds £ I89802 § BT2916 & 1,162.71%8
Proprietary funds 108,559 325678 434237 % 25385
Total § 398361 § 1,198,594 596955 § 25383

-53-
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

ADVANCE REFUNDINGS

The City has provided for the advance refunding of several bond issues. Under the terms of the
refunding issues, sufficient assets to pay all principal and interest on the refunded issues have been
placed in special escrow accounts, Because the escrow accounts are sufficient to pay principal, interest

and redemption premiums on the refunded bonds, the bonds are not recorded

financizl statements of the City,

The various bond issues that have been refunded are as follows:

as a liability in the

Amount of
Amount of Final Bonds
Fund Date Diriginal Maturity Cutstanding
Allected  Issved Issue Diate ot 930003
Water and Sewer Reveniie
Refunding Bonds Utility 1982 § 6,600,000 100107 8 2665000
Water and Sewer REevenue
Refunding Bonds Ultility 1985 6,865, 000 [O01/08 2,240,000
Capital Improvement Revenue Capital
Bonds Imprav, 1986 3900,000  10/01/07 1,260,000
Water and Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds Utility 1988 4335000 10M01/08 1,730,000
Water and Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds Litility | B TOU7. 404 I0fif14 5,075,000
Water and Sewer Fevenue
Hcfumiing Bonds Dltility 1953 10315 Dol 10501414 T 3E0 D00

During the year, the 20034 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds totaling $6,460,000 were
issued 1o refund the 1993 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, As a result, the refunded honds
are considered to be defeased and the liability has been removed. The advance refunding will reduce

lotal debt service costs by $874,615 over the next 11 vears and resulted in

$316.918.

an economic gain of



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 7 - LEASES
Frimary Govermmeni:

Operating Lease. The City leases a portion of its property in the capital assets. All revenues from
rentals are accounted for by the operating lease method. The cost of leased property in the capital assets
15 nol determinable and is included in the municipal waterfront land, buildings and improvements of
$1,638.279, Rental income totaled £76,117 in the General Fund during the fiscal year ended September
30, 2003. As of September 30, 2003, minimum rentals collectible on the noncancellable leas= in the
General Fund totaled $1,240,000 as follows:

car Pori
2004 5 20,000
2005 20,000
2006 20,000
2007 20,000
2008 20,000
20009-2013 100,000
2014-201% 100,000
20190033 100,000
2024-2028 100,000
20297033 100,000
2034-2038 100,000
2039-2043 100,00
2044-2048 100,000
2049-2053 1003, )
2054-2058 100,000
2059-2063 100,000
2064 S0, 000
Total § 1,240,000
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NOTE 7 - LEASES (Continued)

Component Unir:

Port Authonity

Operating Lease. The Port Authority leases a portion of its property to various lessees under operating
lease agreements, both cancellable and noncancellable. Total minimum future rentals for noncancellable
leases at September 30, 2003, are as follows:

2004 § 2,116,634
2005 1,831,039
2006 DEI1.BRB8
2007 413,558
2008 377033
Total 3 5720152

The cost and accumulated depreciation of property held for rental included on the balance sheet are as
follows:

Land 5§ 410,683
Buildings and improvements 7,739,121
Equipment 2.527.458
Accumulated depreciation (3,122,960
Total 7.574

The Port Authority recognized $2.806,045 of revenue from property leases during the year, none of
which was from contingent rentals,

Panama City Port Authority

The Port Authority is the lessee in an agreement with the City of Panama City, Florida, for the lease of
the land occupied by the Port Authority. The lease is for a period of ninely-nine years, expiring
August 31, 2065, The terms of the lease include a minimum annual payment of $20,000 plus additional
rent as the Port Authority deems appropriate in view of its surplus. This additional amount is arbitrary
and subject 1o mutual agreement. Annual rent in the amount of $24,004, $4.000 above the minimim,
was paid for the year ended September 30, 2003. Fulure minimum rental commitments at September 30,
2003, are as follows:
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NOTE 7 - LEASES (Continued)

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009-2013
2014-2018
2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2038
2039-2043
2044-2048
2049-2053
2054-2058
2059-2063
2064

Tota)

20,000
20,0040
20,000
20,000
20,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
100, 04
100,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
10,000
100,000
1 O, 0

40,0040

§.1,240,000

NOTE & - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances at September 30, 2003, are summarized as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Primary Govemment
Governmental Funds —
Major -
General Fund
Proprietary Funds —
Major -
Uilities
Solid Waste
Marina
Nonmajor -
Equipment Maintenance

Total

Interfund
ivahle

$ 70,508

11,754
5,877

a B8 139

Interfund
Pavable

$ 17,631

10,420
6,772
T2

_ 32,744
& __BE.139



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS {Continued)

All remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures oceur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting

system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

Transfers infout:

Transfers In Transfers Chit
Primary Government
Governmental Funds -
Major
Creneral Fund 2421734 2,995,744
CDBG 383,732
Debt Service 2001 362,643
Capital Projects 2314083 170,639
Agpregate Major 5.098 460 3,550,115
MNonmajor
Cieneral Grants
Debt Service 1992 530,725 1,006,189
Debt Service 1903 592,419
Debt Service 1997 410,020
Debt Serviee 1999 208 843
Aggregate Nonmajor 1,852,016 10065, 1
Proprietary Funds -
Major
Ltality 01,809
Solid Waste 2,893 B66
Marina 426,074
Aggrepate Major 4221.749
MNonmajor
Medical 1,786,844
Dental 90,022
Egquipment Maintenance 4,283 34,075
Aggregate Nonmajor .B81.149 34075
8811625 512128

-58-




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 8 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

In the fund financial statements, total transfers outl of $8.812.128 are greater than total transfers in of
$8,811,625 because of the treatment of transfers of capital assets from the Utility fund. During the year
existing capital assets related to enterprise funds, with & book value of $503, were transferred to the
capital assets. No amounts were reparted in the povernmental funds as the amount did not involve the
transfer of financial resources, However, the enterprizse funds did report a transfer out for the capital
resources contributed.

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them 1o
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricled to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipis to the debt service fund as debt service paymenis become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance vanous programs sccounted for in
other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS

Primary Government:

The City has provided retirement plans covering substantially all employees. All participants except
policemen and firemen are included in the Flonda Retirement System or the Retirement Plan and Trust
for the General Employees of the City of Panama City, Florida. The City maintains a separate Pension
Fund for each of the groups excluded by the Flonda Retirement System or the Retirement Plan and
Trust for the General Employees of the City of Panama City, Florida.

9.1 Florida Retirement System

a. Plan Description. The Flonda Retirement System (System) is a multiple-employer, cost-
sharing defined benefit reticement system established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes. The
Florida Retirement System 15 administered by the Division of Retirement of the State of Florida
Department of Admimstration.

b. Plan Provisions and Eligibility. All full-time City employees hired before January 1, 1996,
except police and fire sworn personnel, are eligible to participate in the System, Members
qualify for normal retirement after obtaining 6 years of creditable service and are age 62 or
upon attaining 30 years of service, repardless of age, Retirement benefit payment is based upon
ape and/or years of creditsble service, average final compensation and service credil. Benefits
fully vest on reaching 6 vears of service. Vested employees may retire before qualifying for
normal retirement and receive reduced retirement benefits. The System also provides disability
and survivor benefits. Benefits are estoblished by state statute.

-5
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

.

Confribution Obligations. The City is required by state statutes 121.071 and 121.055 to
coniribute 7.39% of regular participants' salary; and 9.379% of the senior management's salary Lo
the plan and 15.23% of the clected officers” salary. For those emplovees participating in the
Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP), which the FRS initiated in July 1998, the City
contributes 9.11% of emplovees’ salaries. Total pension expense amounted to $309,803, This
15 & noncontributory plan. Contributions made equaled required contributions for the current
and two preceding years.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annial Percentage
Year Pension of APC
Ending Cost (APC) Contribution
30001 472,176 100%
Q30002 380,887 100%
9/30/03 309,803 100%

A separately issued comprehensive annual financial report of the system is available from the
Florida Division of Retirement, 2639 North Monroe Street, Building C, Tallahassee, Florida
324399,

Policemen and Firemen Pension Trust Funds

Plan Description. The policemen and firemen participate in single-employer contributory
defined benefit retirement plans.

Empioyee Coverage. Full-time policemen and firemen are eligible to participate in the pension
trust funds. Membership of each plan consisted of the following at September 30, 2003, the
date of the latest actuarial valuation:
Policemen Firemen
siomn Pepsion

Current retirees and beneficiaries 60 39

Terminated with vested benefits ] 1

Active participants i _b4

Total Members 130 124
]

IMNumber of participating employers 1

<50-
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NOTE 8 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

9.2 Policemen and Firemen Pension Trust Funds (Continued)

e Pension Plan Description and Contribution Information

Eligibility for retirement

Annual retirement benefit

Cither benefits

Past-retirement COLA

Policemen
Pension

Age 50 with 15 years of credited service,
23 years of credited service with no age
requirement, age 55 with 10 years of
credit serviced, or if employed on or
before 1/1/82, the completion of 15
vears of credited service, regardless af
A,

Percentage of average final
compensation according te the following
schedule:

Service Percent  Service Percent

10-14 2% Year 23 66.0%
15 37.5% 24 68.0%
16 42 0% 25 T0.0%
Y7 46.5% 26 72.0%
18 31.0% 27 74.0%
19 55.53% 28 76.0%
20 60.0% 29 T8.0%
21 62.0% o+ B0.D%G
. 6d. 0%

Early retirement
Deferred retirement
Disability benefits
Death benefits

Members retiring on or afier January 1,
1098, receive a 2% per year increase
beginning on the January 1 following the
later of age 50 or the date of retirement
and ending on January 1 of the year the
member reaches social security
retirement age.

=

Firemen

Pension
Age 55 with 10 years of credited
service or 25 years of credited
service with no age requirement.

2 6% of average final
compensation times credited
service (30 year maximum).

With a minimum benefit of

2.0% of average [inal
compensation times credited
service, Average final
compensation is one twelfth of the
average of the 3 best years of
salary of the last 3.

Early retirement
Deferred retirement
Disability benefits
Death benefits

Each January following
retirement, the base benefit 15
increased annually by 3.0% (1.0%
if retired prior to January 1, 1993).
Adjustments cease at social
security retirement age (Age 65 if
retired between 1/1/94 and
9/30/97). Supplemental benefits
are not adjusted.
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

92 Policemen and Firemen Pension Trust Funds (Continued)
c, Pension Plan Deseription and Contribution Information (Contin ued)
Policemen Firemen

Pension (Continued) Pension (Continued)

Contributions
Employes 5.00% of salary 7.5% of salary
Employer Remaining amount necessary after Remaining amount necessary after
member and state contributions for member and state contributions for
payment of normal cost and amorlization  payment of normal cost and
of accrued past service liability over 30 amortization of accrued past
years. service liability over 30 years, In
no event will the City's
contribution be less than 7.5% of
the total salaries of the members,
State 0.85% tax on insurance premiums. 1.85% tax on insurance premiums

d. Caontriburion Obligations. The City’s policy is to fund retirement cost acerusd, The ordinances
require that the City contribute at least 5.0 percent and 7.5 percent of the gross wages of the
policemen and firemen, respectively. The City's contributions 1o the plans for the vear ended
September 30, 2003, were $508,206 for policemen and $557.559 for firemen. The required
contributions for 2003 were $508,206 for policemen and $557.559 for firemen. City
contributions are determined as the amount necessary, over and above premium tax refund and
member contributions to meet normal cost and fund unfunded acerued past service liability over
30 vears,

The ordinances require that participating policemen contribute 5.0 percent and that firemen
contribute 7.5 percent of their repular wages and salaries mcluding overtime but excluding
termination sick leave pay, sick leave bonus pay, health incentive Pay, termination annual leave
pay, and uniform allowances. Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS {Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies. Financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
aceounting. Contributions are recognized as revenue in the peried In which employee services are
performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable. Investments are reported
at fair value. Shori-term investmenls arc reported at cost, which approximates fair value.
Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price
at current exchange rates. Investments that do not have an established market arc reported at

estimated fair value.

Deposits and investments at fair value at September 30, 2003, are as follows:

Policemen Firemen
Pension Pension
Amounts representing 3% or more of total assets:
11.5. Treasury Bonds and Notes b ] $ 1,190,762
Corporate Bonds and Notes 3.163,955 1,655,452
Commeoen Stock 0,534,854 9422 732
Government Agencies 2.028.809 6,015,183
Cash 2,701,855 1,976,215
Amounts representing less than 5% of total assets:
11.8. Treasury Bonds 630,310
Mutual Funds 494135
Total Deposits and Investments $ 18603918 £ 20,260,344
Policemen Firemen
Pension Pension
0/30/03 930,03
Annual Required Contribution:
Estimated member contribubions £ 151,605 S 160,017
Available state contributions 283,678 193,453
Minimum employer contributions 508,206 o o
Annual required contribution with interest 937,827 00,024
Annual Pension Cost:
Actuzrially Determined Contribution $ 308,206 § 537559
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (4,803) (5,805)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 5462 f,601
Annual pension cost 508,865 558,355
Contributions made S08.206 337,359
Increase in Net Pension Obligation 659 79
et Pension Obligation, Beginning of Year (600417 (12559
Net Pension Obligation, End of Year § (59382) & _(71.763)
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued

¥,

9.3

Three-year trend information for Policemen and Firemen Pension Plans are as follows:

Policemen Firemen
Year Ending G003 930002 930401 2430403 03002 B30/0]
Annual Pension Cost £508,206 % 194931 $ 266,153 S 557,559 %327110 % 4 84,165
Percentage of Annual
Pension Cost Contributed 100%% 100% 126% 10024 10025 103%

Net Pension Obligation  $(59.382) § (60,041) $ (60,707) § (71,763) § (72,559) § (73.365)

Financial statements. The Policemen and Firemen Pension Trust Funds do not issue audited
stand-alone financial statements but rely on the audit performed for the City.

Postemployment benefits. In addition to providing pension benefits, it is the City's policy to
provide a $1,000 life insurance policy on all retired employees. The cost of this benefit is
recogmized as an expense as premiums are due, The costs of providing such benefits were not
material to the City’s operations for 2003. Post-retirement health care is not provided.

Trend Information. Trend information gives an indication of the progress made in accumulating
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. Six-year trend information may be found on pages 74
through 76 of the City's comprehensive annual financial report.

The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the City of Panama City,
Florida

: Plan Description. The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Emplovees of the City of

FPanama City, Florida (Fund), is part of the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a cost-
sharing, multiple emplover plan which was established as a trust for the purpase of funding
the ndividually designed employee pension plans of the participating Florida municipalities.
The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the City of Panama City, Florida
' a defined contribution plan administered by the Florida League of Cities, Inc,

Plan Provisions and Eligibilin.  All full-time City employees hired after January 1, 1996,
except police and fire swom personnel, are eligible to participate in the Fund. The City
ordinances establish these plan provisions. Participants must be 18 years or older with three
months of service, The effective date of participation is the first day of the month comciding
with or following ninety days of employment. Members qualify for normal retirement, after
oblaining ten years of creditable service, on the first of the month coinciding with or following
the participant's 65th birthday, Benefits fully vest afier participant reaches ten years of service,
with partial vesting after the completion of six through nine vears of service. The Fund also
provides disability and survivor benefits.
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NOTE 3 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

C.

5.4

Contribution Obligations. The City is required by a resolution of the City of Panama City,
Florida to contribute ten percent of participants’ salaries to the plan. Total pension expense
amounted to $348,364. This is a noncontributory plan. Contributions are as follows:

Percentage of

Required the amouni

Contribution contributed
Qf30/03 b 348,364 |
D/30002 274,172 1%
9/30/01 236,700 10054

A scparately issued annual report of the Fund is available from the Florida League of Cities,
Inme., 201 West Park Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32302,

Component Units

The Panama City Downtown Improvement Board participates in the Retirement Plan and Trust
for the General Employees of the Panama City Downtown Improvement Board.

Plan Description. The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the Panama City
Downtown Improvement Board is part of the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a cost
sharing multiple employer plan established as a trust for the purpozse of funding the individually
designated employee pension plans of the participating Florida municipalities. The Retirement
Plun and Trust for the General Employees of the Panama City Downtown Improvement Board is
a defined contribution plan administered by the Florida League of Cities, Inc.

Plan Provisions and Eligibility.  All full-time employees hired after January 1, 1996 are eligible
1o participate in the Fund. The Board resolution established these plan provisions. Participants
must be 18 years or older with three months of service. The effective date of participation is the
tirst day of the month coinciding with or following ninety days of employment. Members qualify
for normal retirement, after obtaining ten years of creditable service, on the first day of the month
coinciding with or following the participants 65th birthday. Benefits fully vest after participant
reaches ten years of service, with partial vesting afier the completion of six through nine years of
service. The Fund also provides disabilitv and survivor benefits.

Contribution Obligations.  The Panama City Downtown Improvement Board is required by
resolution to comtribute ten percent of participants’ salaries to the plan. Total pension expense
amounted to 38,062, This is a noncontributory plan.

The Panama City Port Authority, like the City of Panama City, participates in the Florida
Retirement System (System) and The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the
Panama City Port Authority,
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NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

9.4

Florida Refivement Svstem

All full-ime employees of the Port Authority hired before January 1, 1996, are eligible to
participate in the System.

The Panama City Port Authority is required by state statutes 121.071 and 121.055 1o contribute
5.76% of participants’ salary to the plan. Actual contributions equaled required contributions in
the current and for each of the two preceding years. Total pension expense amounted to $19,432,
324,583 and $36,248 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The plan is employee noncontributory.,

Plan provisions and eligibility are the same as described for the City (Primary Government).
Component Units {Continued)
The Retivement Plan and Trust for the General Emplovees of the Panama City Port A uthority

8. Plan Description, The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Employees of the Panama
City Port Authority, is part of the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund, a cost-sharing,
multiple employer defined contribution plan which was established as a trust for the purpose
of funding the individually designed employee pension plans of the participating Florida
municipalities. The Retirement Plan and Trust for the General Emplovees of the Panama City
Port Authonty is a defined contribotion plan administered by the Florida League of Citics,
Ine.

b. Plan Provisions and Eligibility. All full-time Port employees hired after January 1, 1996, are
eligible to participate in the Fund, Participants must be 18 years or older with three months of
service. The effective date of participation is the first day of the month coinciding with or
following ninety days of emplovment. Members qualify for normal retirement, afier
obtaining ten years of creditable service, on the first of the month coinciding with or
following the participant's 65th birthday. Benefits fully vest after participant reaches ten years
of service, with partial vesting after the completion of six through nine years of service, The
Fund also provides disability and survivor benefits.

o, Confribusion Obligations. The Panama City Port Authority is required to contribute ten
percent of participants' salaries to the plan. Total pension expense amounted to $33,827. This
is a noncontributory plan. Contributions are as follows:

Percentage of

Required the amount

Contribution __contributed
a/30/03 b 33,827 100%,
930002 27,991 100%
Qr30/01 25,8392 100%:

-B6-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS {Continued)

A separately issued annual report of the Fund is available from the Florida League of Cities, Inc..
201 West Park Avenue, Tallahassee, Florida 32302.

NOTE 10 — AGENCY FUNDS

4 Deferred Compensation Plan.  The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City
employees, permits them fo defer a portion of their salary until future vears. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
EMETEEnCY.

As required by Internal Revenue Code Section 457, the assets are held in trust for the employees’
benefit. An administrator or committes, selected by the government, i3 responsible for the
administration of the plan, including approval of certain investment alternatives (funds) which are
made available to plan participants. The government has a fiduciary duty to administer the plan
properly and o assure that the investment alternatives made available are reasonable. However,
since plan participants select the investment fund or funds in which their deferred compensation
accounts are invested, the government has no liability for investment losses which occur as a
result of the investments selected by the plan participants,

In prior years, the assets and liabilities of the plan have been presented in an agency fund. In

accordance with GASB Statement No. 32, they are no longer presented since the City has no

fiduciary responsibilities other than administrative in connection with the plans.

Assets of the plan are valued at market value and amount to $2,466,307 as of September 30, 2003.
b. Cafeteria Plan Agency Fund. The City offers a flexible compensation program on an anfual

basis to all employees who have completed their initial probationary period. Enrolled employees

make pre-tax contributions to pay for benefits which can include health care, dental care, vision

care and child eare, The employee chooses among vatious health benefit programs that best meet
the needs of the employee and the employee's family.

NOTE 11 - ENCUMBRANCES
The amount of encumbrances outstanding as of September 30, 2003, is as follows:

Governmental Funds-

General Fund § 164,739
Community Development 15,000
Capital Projects Fund 1,173,501



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 11 - ENCUMBRANCES (Continued)

Proprietary Funds-
Equipment Maintenance h ] 1,738
Marina Fund 46,844
Solid Waste Fund 191,696
Utility Fund 4.415,149
Tatal 26,008,687

Encumbrances at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities; therefore, they are not reflected
in the financial statements.

NOTE 12 - EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES OVER BUDGET
IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS AND DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

Excess of actual expenditures/expenses over budgeted amounts are as follows:

Fund Excess
Governmenial-
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds of 2001 112 )
Transportation Improvement Revenue Bonds of 1997 382 (D)
Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds of 1992 67 (1)

(13, (2), and {3} These excesses are due to fiscal charges on the debt services
that were not budpetad.

The Equipment Maintenance Fund showed a deficit in retained eamings in the amount of 533,778. This
resulted from higher than anticipated cost of vehicle maintenance in the prioT year.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

13.1

13.4

Grant Program. The City participates in various federal and state grants. These programs are
subject 1o audit and adjustment by the funding agency or their representatives. If grant revenucs
are teceived for expenditures which are subsequently disallowed, the City may be required o
repay the revenues to the funding agency. In the opinion of management, liabilities resulting
from such disallowed expenditures, if any, will not be material to the accompanying financial
tatements. As of September 3, 2003, there were no material questioned or disallowed costs as
a result of grant audits in process or completed.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has approved a Community
Development Block Grant in the amaunt of $482,000 that begins on October 1, 2003.

Self-Insurance Programs. The City is self-insured for employee health and dental claims. See
Naote 5 for further details.

Bond [ssues

Interlocal Agreement. An Interlocal Agreement For Airport Support was entered into by the
City, Bay County and the Panama City-Bay County Airport and Industrial District. $5.130,000
Ajrport Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 were issued by the Panama City-Bay County Adrport and
Industrial District and are primarily payable from and secured by a lien on the net revenues of
the airport facilities. As further security for the payment of these bonds, the City and Bay
County have covenanied in the Interlocal Agreement for Airport Support 1o appropriate in their
annual budgets amounts that are sufficient to satisfy any deficiency in the required deposits 10
the hond fund. The City does not anticipate that any material appropriations will be necessary 10
satisfy this agreement.

(ither. During the past years, the City has acted az a conduit on several bond issues. These
issues do not constitute an actual debt, liahility, or obligation of the City. The City has not
received notice of any default in the payment of principal or interest on any of these obligations.
Amount outstanding as of September 30, 2003 is 1,756,000,

Litigation. The City is the defendant in certain lawsuits incurred in the normal course of

operations. Management believes that amounts not covered by the insurance, if any, resulting
from these lawsuits would not materially affect the financial position of the City,

59-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

135 Construction Commitments, The City has outstanding commitments for construction contracts
at year end. The commitments represent the difference between the contract prices of the various

prajects and the amounts paid on esch contract. Outstanding construction commitments by fund
at September 30, 2003, are as follows:

General Fund ¥ 269665
Capital Projects 1,131,191
Enterprise:
Utilities 4,769,740
Marina 43,842



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION OTHER THAN MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THIS SECTION CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING SUBSECTIONS:

< BUDGET TO ACTUAL COMPARISON — MAJOR FUNDS
(GENERAL AND SPECIAL REVENUE)

< PENSION SCHEDULES



GENERAL FUND

This fund is used to account for all financial transactions not
accounted for in another fund.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues:
Taxes F 13400500 § 13,400,500 5 14588847 S 1,1B8347
Licenses and permits 7318750 7,318,750 1557776 239,026
Intergovemnmental 3,270.000 3,270,000 4,113,530 843,530
Charges for services 81379 881,379 1,144 568 263,489
Miscellaneous 6] 8,004 620, %) 503,405 {27.405)
Total revenues 25480 520 25491.520 27998 516 2 506,987
Expenditures:
Current-
Creneral povernment 4,333,061 4,779,514 4,104,122 675392
Public safety 12,163,007 12,847 767 12,072,872 774,895
Transporiation 4,103 308 4637677 4,033,301 604,376
Economie environment 45,642 372,686 371,618 1.068
Human services 184,928 200,394 142 356 58038
Culturefrecrestion 2,330,807 2530428 22591001 239,427
Total expenditures 23 460,853 25,368 466 23015270 2,353,196
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 228,678 123,063 4,983,246 4,860,183
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transiers - in 1,465,155 1,554,174 2,421,734 867,560
Operating transfers - out (3,.335,909) {3,340,192) 12.995,744) 344,448
Total other financing
sources (uses) {1.870.754) (1,786.018) (574.010) 212 (HOE
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
end other financing sources
over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 157 92% [(1,662.955) 4,408,236 6,072,191
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year 14,119,452 14,118,452 14,119,452 0
End of year 5 14,277,374 T 124564097 5 18528688 % 6.072.191

See independant auditor's report
“Ti-



CITY OF FPANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2003

Oiriginal Final

Budget Budget Artual Wariance
Lepislative 5 192935 % 221484 § 1M893 & 30.591
Executive 618,169 661,502 443,505 217,997
Finance and Administration - City Clerk 689,081 738,564 688,607 49,957
Finance and Administration - Purchasing 24,076 23,963 20,679 3784
Fimanee and Administration - Human Resoures: 261,686 264 EEZ 223434 41,448
Finance and Adminigtration - Data Processing 2RE.BE) 230,564 288,789 1,575
Finance and Administration - Legal Connse] 252490 2T A0 265 A80 22018
Public Works - Engincering B27.538 B8R 330 658,516 235,823
Public Works - Sirest 4,103,308 4,637,677 4,033,301 604,376
Public Works - Other L.178.205 1317027 1227280 00,647
Palice 1489 552 T.ERE. 191 1,355,825 542566
Fire 4 673,455 4,940 576 4,717,047 232 539
Leisure Services 2 62 B2 2262343 2.031,081 231 262
Mon-departments] THB.655 526 164 B0 233 55,331
Total (General Fund
Expenditures by Department $ 23460853 § 35368466 513015270 S 2,353,194

Ser indepandent audifor'sraport.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Community Planning and Development. This fund accounts for
revenues received from the U.S, Department of Housing and
Urban Development and the State Housing Initiatives
Partnership Program. Revenues are restricted to accomplishing
the various objectives of the Community Development Program.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Eu:l-Eeted Amourits

Original Final Actual Variance
Revenues:
Intergovernmental 5 O72.548 3 072548 8 016,331 % (56,217)
Miseallansous 4,100 4,100 19.575 15475
Toutal revenues 076,648 076,648 935,906 {40, 742)
Expenditores:
Current-
Transporiation 55,045 55,045
Culture and recreation 33,350 47,000 13,650
Economic environment -
Housing and Urban Development 296,270 351,709 116,886 34,823
Total expenditures 296,270 440,104 418,931 48,473
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures GE0,ITE 536,544 516,973 {19,569)
Diher Financing Sonrces (Uses):
Operating transfers - out (310,067 (460,067) (383,732) 76,335
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 370.311 15,477 133,243 26, 765
Fund Balances:
Besinning of year 5,767,597 5. T6T.597 5,767,597 0
End of vear § 6137908 § 5844074 § 5900840 3 56.766

See independsni suditor's report.



Actuserial
Valuation:

[haie

1 16
MW LNT
'Las
L
107 L0
L Bl
{ET K i
1 LDE

Actunrial
Value of
AARES

5 12.577,64T
15262 710
16,744,225
17,752,619
20,328, 506
21,164 E40
20,752,965
20,963,823

Year
End=d

Seplember 30

15956
1957
1998
L
2000
2001
20{L
2003

* Met Pensiea CHaligation:

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
POLICEMEN RETIREMENT FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
Schedule of Funding Progness
Actanrinl Accrued  Unfinded LAAL As A Chunge
Linhdfity (AAL) - Aal Funded Covered Percemilage of  Since Prioy
Frozen Entry Age (LEAAL) Rt Piyrall Coversd Payroll _ Valuation
& 11,867 867 £ {509 T80) I04.530% 5 2423538 {2103 CA
IZET0960 (23917500 IIB58% 2467585 (9693 CP,.CM.CA
15068 848 (1475377 111.12% 2,714,250 [ RN e
17,004,750 {657,560} 103.85% 3 620,943 (25.100%.  Mone
8112222 {2,215,284) 112.39% 2,595.2%] (BS5. 405 cP
21,164,849 0 100, 0% 2,816,154 0.00% CA,CM
21.263,744 510,781 DTl % 2918 268 17500  MWone
1 H4E 45 484 223 o7 74% 2,032,081 153407 Mome
CT* = change plim provizion
CA = chanpe nciuarial sssumplion
CM = chmnge valuntion method
MUA = information is nol availabls
Sehodule of Emplover Contributivgs
Anmizal L]
Required Percentage Pension
Contribution Comeributed ﬂhllgﬂhﬂl‘l
¥ 235675 154 0%, L
573,047 105 47% "
238, 05w 21535% -
15373 1006455 .
B2 A6 100, 102 -
S0 B13.07% -
ATH G0 LU0 05 i
T91,884 1 0% i

The NP0 il trnsition, Cctober 1, 1997, ig 2ero for the policemen pension plas, In accordance with paragraph 3|
ef GASH Stmemeant Mamber 27, the City's records substantinte that all acnssrially deticrmined contributions have

heen paid.

Sea independent sudilor's report:
=7d-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
FIREMEN RETIREMENT FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003
Schedule ol Funding Progress
Ariunrial Actumrial Actuiril Acensed Uinfunded UAal As & Changs
Walwation Walue of Linbilitw {AAL) - AAL Fuandasd Covered Percentage of - Since Prior
Date Assets Frozen Entry Ape (UAAL) Rt Pavrodl  Covered Payroll  Valuatien
Il § 13,1505 X228 ¥ 12,647 595 §(497.833) 103.92%: §F 2.592. 747 (1% 1983 Mome
L 15207 685 F3,078,193 {2,129 452) 1 16,285 2431 280 {81 24% Heae
L ] 16, G, 794 16,876,056 269,107 G409 2,300,620 11.60% CP.CA
bariae 18,241, 849 18,605 404 363,645 GE.05% 1858 159 12.72% CPhCa
T LA 20,103,314 22 430,284 L3260 R9.63% 1257255 103, 088 CA
1 2132087 26,739,047 FA08 1 T TR.TT%% 2205654 23563% CALCM
1V A0 21,351 507 2 K32, 7% 5481 25| TATE 1.eE6R22 275 5% Mone
10103 21.411,504 16,764,343 5352 4490 EOD0% 2133548 250.87%  Meme

CP = chanpe plan provision

CA = change setanrial assumption
Ch = change valuntkon methad
HiA = informuation is not avalisble

Sibedule of Emplover Contribsitioas
Year Annual Pe
Ended Required Perceniags Pension
Boplember 30 Comiribution Cantribuzed Obligatian

1994 § 401202 1. 1 5% X
1957 265, T35 9073 *
1958 213564 19556 -
19455 AT 553 103.737% 5
2000 436,407 113.17% .
20| hid SR IRL25% -
2003 507,200 H TR AL .
2003 Ti,012 e "

* Hel Pension Obligaisomn;

The NPO at tinsition, October 1, 1997, is 2er0 for the firemen pengion plan. Is sccordance with paragraph 31 of
GASE Statzment Number 27, the City's records subszantiate that all actuarially determined contributions have

been paid.

Ses independen! sudilar's report.
-T5-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
FOLICEMEN AND FIREMEN RETIREMENT FUNDS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SEPTEMEBER 30, 2003

The information in the required supplemental schedules was determined as part of the actuarial
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Actuarial Valuation:
WValuation date

Actuarial cost method

Amortiration:
Amortization method

Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Azsumptions:
Post-retirement increases

Investment rate of retum
Frojected salary increases
Includes inflation at

Post retirement COLA

Policemen Firemen
Retirement Fetiremient
Fund Fund
10/00/03 10/01/03

Frozen entry age

Level % of pay, closed
29 years (closed)

4 Year Smooth (Market)

2.0% annmual cost-of-living
adjustment commencing at
the later of age 50 or
actual retirement
B%

6%

3%

2% to social security
retirement age

See independent audilor's report

=TG-

Frozen entry age

Level % of pay, closed
29 years (closed)
4 Year Smooth

(Market)

3% annual cost-of-
living adjustment
ceasing at the earlier
of death or age 65
5%

6%

Bl

3% o social security
retirement agpe



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

++ NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

% SCHEDULES OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL —
OTHER MAJOR AND NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS
< INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

< FIDUCIARY FUNDS



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds arc used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure
for particular purposes.

General Grants - This Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues received from various stats
and federal agencies other than prants accounted for in the Community Planning and Development
Fund.

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds account for the payment of principal and interest on debt reported in the general
long-term debt account group.

The debt service fund, Capital Improvement Revenue Bond of 1999, accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general oblipation debt of the
199% bonds.

The debt service fund, Transportation Improvement Revenue Bonds of 1997, accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of the
1997 bands,

The debt service fimd, Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds of 1995, accounts for the resources
accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on lon g-term general obligation debt of the
1995 bonds,

The debr service fund, Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds of 1992, accounts for the
resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term general obligation
debt of the 1992 bonds.

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Profects Funds - These funds are used to nccount for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds
provided by the 1999 Bond izsue),



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Special
Revenie Debt Service
Capital Transportation
Improvement Improvement
Revenue Revenue
General Bonds Bonds
ARSETS G rants of 194949 of 1997
Aszefe:
Cash and cash equivalents-
Coupon accounts b 213,498 % 317,726
Sinking fund reserve
ACCOUnTs
Total Assets b - % 213408 3§ 317,726
LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES
Liahilities:
Accrued other liabilities b 15,522
Fund Balanees:
Reserved for:
Debt service 197976 3 316,883
Capital prajects
Unreserved - designated
for delwt service B43
Total fund balances L4 197.976 317.726
Total Liahilitics and
Fund Balances 5 - -8 213,498 § 317,726

See independent auditor's report.
o iy



Capital

Debt Service Projects
Capital
Capital Improvement Capital
Improvement  Revenue and Improvements Total
Revenue Refunding Provided By Non-Major
Bonds Bonds 1999 Governmental
of 1995 of 1992 Bond Issue Funds
3 78,719 § 78,719
8 5006 S 546,966 1,523,196
3 445006 § 5:16.955 5 78,719 % 1,601,915
b 12,522
3 444565 § 201,432 1. 1640,856
¥ 78,719 78,719
441 345,534 346,818
445,006 546,966 78,719 1,586,393
5 445006 £ S46966 % w79 8 1.601,915

See indepondent Budilors report.

-T8-




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Charpes for services
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service-
Principal retirement
[nterest
Fiscal charpes
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver (under) expenditures

Other Financing
Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers - in
Operating transfers - out
Contribution to other government
Total other financing
sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses

Fund Balances:
Beginning of vear

End of year

Sea independen! auditor's report,

Special
Revenue Debit Service
Capital Transportation
Improvement Improvement
Revenue Revenoe
CGeneral Bonds Bond=
Girants of 1999 of 1997
b3 494 624
40,716
F o . ¢ 478 5 BOg
56,102
521.72] 478 BO8
125,000 205,000
169,102 217967
l.582
0 2594102 424,549
621,721 [293,624) (423.651%
208,843 410,029
(1,006,189)
(1,006,185 298 843 410,029
(384,468) 5,219 (13,622)
384,468 192,757 331.34%8
b - 5 197,976 % 317726
—— —_—

-5



Capital

Debt Service Projects
Capital
Capital Improvement Capital
[mprovement  Revenue and Improvements Taotal
Revenue Refunding Provided By Non-Major
Bonds Bonds 1999 Governmenial
of 1995 of 1992 Bond Issue Funds
b 494,624
40,716
1,284 1,158 & 1,004 5,101
86,102
1,284 1,158 1,004 626,543
285,000 425,000 1,040,000
296,376 242,510 015,955
1,068 2,650
581376 HHR,578 ( 1,968.605
(580,092} (667.420) 1,004 (1,342,062}
592,419 530,722 1,832,016
(1,006, 1859)
[ 198,636) {198,636)
502,419 530,723 {198,636) 627,191
12327 (136,695) (197,632) (714,871
432,679 HE3.66] 276,351 2,301,264
445,006 546966 5 78,719 3 1,586,393

Cap indepandent audiors reporL

BD-




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

GENERAL GRANTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Bevenuoes:
Intergovernmental
Charees for services
Miscellanecus

Tatal revenues

Expenditores:
Currert-
Economic environment
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Tises):
Operating transfers - out

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures
ind other financing uses

Fund Balances:
Bepginning of yvear

End of vear

Budgeted Amounts
Oiripinal Final Actual Wariance
g BR019 § 494624 §  405.605
40,7146 40,716
b 66,504 6,500 B6.381 19,881
66,500 155,519 621,721 466,202
0 0 0 0
6,500 155519 621,721 466,202
{115,155} (204,174 (1. 006 185 (802.015)
(48.655) {48,655) (3B4,468) (335,813)
384,468 384,468 384,468 0
¥ 335813 % 335813 3% - % (335813
=

See independent auditor's rapoe,
=f1-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS OF 2001 -

DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budpeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Yariance
Revenues:
Miscellaneous -interest - % - & 3039 % 3039
Expenditures:
Dbt service -
Interest 362,643 362,643 362,642 ]
Fiscal charges 1.000 1,000 1.112 {112)
Total expenditures 363,643 363,643 363,754 (111}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (363.643) (363,643 (360, 715) 2,928
Orther Financing Sources (Uses):
Crperating transfers - in 362 643 362,643 362,643 ]
Excess {deficiency) of reveniies
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses (1,000 {1,000) 1,928 2928
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year 9,021,527 9,021,527 9021527 i
End of year 2020527 § 9020527 § 9023455 % 2,928

See independent auddor's report
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS OF 1988 -
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amounts

Orriginal Final Actual Yariance
Bevenues:
Mizcellaneous -mterest b 1,000 % 1,000 5 118 5 (522}
Expenditures:
Dbt service -
Principal retirement 125, 00H) 125,000 125,000 1]
[nterest LGS, 103 169,103 169,102 1
Fizcal charges 1000 1,000 1,000
Total expenditures 255,103 295,103 294,102 1001
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (294, 103) (204,103) (293 624) 479
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers - in 294,103 294,103 298,843 4,740
Total other finencing
sources (uses) 294 103 294,103 298,843 4,740
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses il 0 5219 5219
Funid Balances:
Beginning of vear 192,757 192357 192,757 0
End of year 3 192757 5 192757 % 197976 § 5,219

Ses independent audilors report
-B3-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS OF 1997 -
DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
Revenucs:
Miscellaneous - interest 5 1006 % 1,000 % BOoR & {102)
Expenditures:
Debt service -
Principal retirement 205,000 205,000 205,000
Interest 217,957 217.967 217,967
Fiscal charges 1,000 1,004) 1,582 (582)
Total expenditures A 423,967 423 957 424,549 [5R2)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (422 86T) (422.967) (423.651) (684}
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Operating transfers - in 4212 967 422 967 410,028 (12.938)
Total other financing sources (uses) 422,967 422967 410,029 {12,938)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures pnd other
financing uses (13,622) (13,622
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year 331,348 331,348 331.348 L]
End of year b 331,348 % 331,348 § 317,726 % (13,622)

See independent auddor's repon.
-Bd-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS OF 1995 -
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance
Hevenues:
Miscellaneous -interest 5 L0 % 1.o00 % 1284 % 284
Expenditures;
Dbt service -
Principal retirement 285,000 285,000 285,000 ]
Inierest 205 685 295 685 296,376 (691}
Fiscal charpes 1,000 1,000 1,00k
Total expenditures e 581,685 581,685 581376 300
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
aver (under) expenditures (580,685) {580,685) (580,002} 503
Other Financing Sources {Uses):
Operating transfers - SB0.685 580,685 592,419 11,734
Excess of revenues and
other financing sources over
expenditures and other
financing uses 0 i} 12327 12327
Fund Balances:
Beginming of vear 432,670 432,670 432679 0
End of vear b 432,67 % 432679 % 445008 % 12,327
See independent auditor's report,

-B5-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE AND REFUNDING BONDS OF 1992 -
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amournts
Chriginal Final Actual Variance
Revenues:
Miscellaneous - mterest 5 i.000 % 1.0 % 1,158 |58
Expenditures:
Debl service -
Principal retirement 425,000 425, 000 425,000
Interest 242511 242 511 242 510 1
Fiscal charges 1,000 1,000 1,068 (GE)
Total expenditures 668,511 668,511 bH8, 378 (6771
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {667,511) (667,511} (667,420) 9]
Other Financing Sources (Lises):
Crperaling transfers - in 667,511 667,311 230,725 (136,786)
Transfers in -component unit 39,013 39,013 (39,013)
Total other financing
SOUTCeS 706,524 706,524 530,725 (175,799)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other
financing usecs 39013 30013 (136,695) {175,708)
Fund Balances:
Beginning of year GE3,66]1 683,661 GE3, 661 0
End of vear $ 722674 3 72674 % 546966 (175,708)
See independent awdibor's repor.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
CAPITAL PROJECTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Budgeted Amounts
Onginal Final Actual Variance
Revenues:
Miscellaneous -
Interest revenue ¥ 200000 § 200000 $ 157,741 § (42259
Refund of prior vear expenses 13,685 13,685
Total revenues 200,000 200,000 171,426 (28.574)
Expenditures:
Current-
Transportation 1] 0 989 825 (989,825}
Capital outlay-
General government 494,311 700,808 83,400 617408
Public works 300,000 300,000
Public safety £24 000 004,387 749 690 154,697
Physical environment 166,941 93,426 13,515
Transportation 1,984,000 8,503,556 3,560,451 4,043,105
Culture/recreation 340,000 287,776 65,515 222.261
Total expenditures 3.642 311 10,863,458 3542307 5,321,161
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (34423110 (10.663.468) (5,370.881) 5,292 587
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers - in 300,000 2,450,000 2,314,083 (135,917)
Operating transfers - out (167.,933) (167,933} (170.,639) (2,706)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 132,067 e R LT 2,143 444 {138,623)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses (3.310,244) {B.381.401) (3,227,437 3,153,964
Fund Balances:
Beginning of vear 8,604,219 8,604219 8,604219 0
End of year $35203975 § 220818 § 5376782 % 5.1 33,964
—-—— . = =

Ses independent auditor's report,
ET7-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

CAPITAL IMFROVEMENTS PROVIDED BY
1999 BOND ISSUE - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

-

Revenues:
MMizcellanzsous - interest

Expenditures:
Current-
Public safety

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Exeess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Contribution 1o other government

Fund Balances:
Bepinning of year

End of year

Budgeted Amounts

See independent auditor's raport.
-BB-

Original Final Actual Variance
5 - 3 - 3 1,004 § 1,004
L
0 0 1,004 1,004
0 0 1,004 1.004
0 (199,000} (198.636) 364
276,351 276,351 276,351 {
$ 276351 & 713t 8 V8719 & 1,368



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

These funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by
one department or agency to other departments or agencies on the cost-
reimbursement basis.

The following funds account for the City's self-insurance operations:
Medical Self-Insurance
Dental Self-Insirance

The following fund accounts for labor and repairs on city owned equipment;

Equipment Maintenance Fund



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Madical Dental
Equipment self- Belf-
Maintenance Insurance [nsurance Total
ASSETS
Carrent Assets:
Cash and cach equivalents £ 1598216 3§ 109736 ¥ 1,707952
Accounts receivable 3 1,702 1,702
[Due from other government units 3,564 3,964
Inventory 18612 18,612
Total current assels 24378 1,558,216 100,734 1,732,230
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Machinery and equipment 147,297 147,277
Less sccumulated depreciation (127,388} {127.388)
Total property, plant and
equipment 19,589 i (- 19,889
Total Assels £ 44167 § 1598216 5 109736 % 1,754,119
—
LIABILITIES
Current Liahilities:
Due 1o other funds 5 52744 L 52 744
Accounts payable 23208 § 383056 S5 2325 408 5%0
Accrued wapes payable 1,0Ek] 8 E]
Accrued annual leave - corment
portion 5248 5248
Total currert lisbilitics B2 0 383,056 2320 467 583
Moncorrent Lishilities:
Accreed wages payable -
Accrued mnnual leave (net of
current poriion) 15,744 15,744
Total linbalities 07,945 JB3 056 2,330 483,327
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital asseis, net
of relnted dehit 19,880 19,150
Restricted for claiims 1,215,160 107410 1,322 570
Unrestricted {deficit) (73,667) (73.667)
Total net asscts (deficit) (53,778 1,215,160 147410 1,268,752
Total Linbilities and Met Asseis 5 44167 £ 1598216 & 109,736 §. 1,754,119

See independent audidor's report.
-BO-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Medical Dental
Equipment Self- Self=
Maintenance  Insurance Insurance Tatal
Dperating Revenues:
Charges for services § 983,520 £ 933,520
Contributions -
Intergovernmental 1,901 1,901
Employee contributions ¥ 340892 § 62919 403,811
Other agency contributions 281,255 21,554 302,809
Retired employee contributions 335,729 26,628 3182357
Miscellaneous 939 PR
Tolal operating revenucs 986,360 377.876 111,101 2,075.337
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 271,137 271,137
Operating expenses -
Operating expenses 679,510 679.510
Depreciation 8,046 B.046
Administration fees 352,085 16,170 568,255
Claims 2,260,167 149,149 2,409.316
Total operating expenses 03g,603 2312252 165,319 3,936,264
Operating income (Joss) 27,667 (1,834.375) (54.218) (1,860,927
Monoperating Revenue (Expense):
Interest revenuc ] 10,322 396 10,718
Inzome (loss) before
operating transfers 27667 (1,824,054) (53,822) (1,850,209
Operating Transfers:
Operating transfers - in 4283 1,786,544 90,022 1,881,149
Operating transfers - out (34.075) {34,075}
Taotal operating transfers in (ouwt) (29.792) 1,780,844 00,022 1.847.074
Change in Net Assets (2,125) (37,210) 36,200 (3,135)
Net Assets - Beginning of vear (31.6353) | A TL210 1,271,927
Net Assers - End of vear 5 (53.778) ¥ 1215160 % 107410 § 1.268792

s independent auditers repart.
-5






CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Medical Deental
Fequipment Sell- Self-
Muaintenance Insurance Insurance Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 5 984,830 £ 984,830
Cash paid to suppliers {692.166) (692, 166)
Cash paid 1o emplovees (265,628) (265,628)
Cash received for insurance contributions § 97787 % 111,100 1,088,977
Cash paid for insurance claims (2,792,175) (173,115) [2.965,290)
MNet cash provided (used) by
operating activities 27.036 (1,814,259) {62.014) {1,845.277)
Cash Flows From Nonecapital
Financing Activities:
Operating transfers - in 4,283 1,786,844 S,022 1,881,149
Operating transfers - out (34.075) 34.075)
Met cash provided (used) by
noncapital financing activities {29,792} 1,786, 844 90,022 1,B47.074
Cash Flows From Capital Related
Financing Activities:
Proczeds from sale of capital assets 2,756 2,756
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Intersst on investments 10,322 196 10,718
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 0 (17,133) 28,404 11,271
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning of year 0 1,615,340 81,332 1.696,681
End of Year b _[I!_ $ 1598216 ¥ 109736 % 1.707.952

Sea independent auditor's report.
51-



Reconciliation of Operating Income
(Laoss) to Net Cash provided (used)
By Operating Activities:
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating

income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities -
{Increase) Decrease -
Due from other governmental
Unis
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Increase (Decrease) -
Accounts pavable
Due to other funds
Accrued wages
Accrued annual leave
Met cash provided (used)
by operating activities

Medical
Equipment Self -

bMaintenance Insurance

Dierital
Self -
Insurance Tatal

§ 27.667 % (1,834,376

$ (54218 § (1,860,927)

8,046 8,046
(1,955) (1,955)
425 425
(5.892) (5,892)
(20,491) 20,077 {7.796) (8,210)
13,727 13,727
(4.013) (4,013)
9,522 9,522

$ 27036 § (1.814.199)

San independant awditor's repor.
83~

§ (62,014) 3 {113492?31




FIDUCIARY FUNDS

These funds are used to account for assets held in trost by the City for others. They
include Trust and Agency Funds.

Fension Trust Funds. The funds aceount for the activities of the policemen's and
firemen's defined benefit plans. These funds are as follows:

Policemen's Pension
Firemen's Pension
Cafeteria Plan Agency Fimd  This fund accounts for pre-tax contribution of

cnrolled employees for benefits which can include health care, dental care, vision
care, and child care.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

ASSETS

Assets:
Cash
Investments
Accounts receivahble

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenuc
Acerued payroll deductions and matching
Total liabilities

Met Assels
Reserve for employee pension benefits

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

See independent audiior's report
43

Pension Agency
Trust Fund Totals

1593 3 1,293
§ 38,864,262 38,864,262
b 38,864,262 7593 § 38,871,855
4 2,178 4 2178
32,458 32458
1.593 7,393
34,636 1.393 42,229
38,829,626 38.819.626
5 38,864,262 1593 5 38,871,855



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMEINING STATEMENT OF PLAN NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Agsels)
[nvestments
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Met asseis:
Met assets held in trusl for

pension benefits

Tatal Liabilities and Met Assets

Policemen's Firemen's
Pension Pension Totals
£ 18603918 3 M0.260344 5 3R, B64,262
¢ 18,603,918 § 20260344 5 38.864.262
i F=-

b 2178 5 2178
32,458 32,458
14,636 8 0 34,636

18,569,282 20260344 38 829,626

g 18,0603,91 B 5 20,260,344 =$- 335..354,_162

See independent auditor's repart
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 20, 2003

Policemen's Firemen's
Pension Pension Totals
Additions
Contributions -
Employee b3 160,336 ¥ 156,402 § 316,738
City 508,206 557,559 1.065,765
Stale 139,021 228.800 567.821
Other 2617 4.836 7.453
Total contributions 1,010,180 947 597 1,957,777
Investment income -
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments 1,712,188 933,641 2,645,829
Interest revenue 483,585 790,100 1.273. 685
2195773 1,723,741 3.919.514
Less investment expense {179,176) (184.479) {363,655)
Met investment income (loss) 2,016,597 1,539.262 3,555,859
Total additions 3,026,777 2,486,859 5,513,636
Deductions
Benefits {48,114 (800,193) (1.748,307)
Eefunds of contributions (381,010) {457,000 (B38,010)
Administration {3,265) {4,168) (7.433)
Total deductions (1,332,389) {1.261,361) {2,593,750)
Net Increase 1,694 388 1,225 498 2919 886
Net Assets Held in Trust
for Pension Benefits:
Beginning of vear 16,874,894 19,034,846 35,9009, 740
End of vear ¥ 18.569282 ¥ 20260344 i 38,829 626

See indepandent auditor's repart
=05,



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
AGENCY FUND - CAFETERIA PLAN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2003

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2002 Additions Deductions 2003
ASSETS
Cash 5 6913 § 82329 f§£ gl16490 % 7,593
Total Assets 5 6913 § 82329 § 81649 § 1.593
LIABILITIES

Payroll deductions and matchings -
Due to employees $ 6913 § 82329 § B1649 § 7,593
Total Liabilities § 6913 § 82329 5§ 81649 § 7.593

Sae independent puditor's repor,
05-



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

% SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
ENTERPRISE AND INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

% SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO
MATURITY



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA,

UTILITIES FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVEMUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Ohperating Revenoes:
Charges for services
Tap fees and penalties-
Connection fees
Hydrant fess
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operiating Expenses:
Personal services
Diperating cxpenses
Diepreciation
Totul operating expenses

Dperating income

Monoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue
Impact feeg
Intersst expense
CHher debt gervice costs
Total ponoperating revenuss
{expenses)

Income before
operating transfers
Orperating Transfers:
Operating transfers - out
Total operating transfers «

in {out)

Change in Met Assets

Nt Asseis - Beginning of vear

Net Assets - End of year

Fhmlﬂul:[gﬂ_ Actua) Variance
% 10,525000 § 10,287,594 (237,406)
268,500 235201 {33,200
49500 49,500 ]
280,456 280,456
10,843,000 10,852,751 9751
2,709,460 2,632,329 77131
7,480,589 4,299,533 3,181,036
1,450,000 1,562,280 {112,280)
11,640,049 8404, 142 3,145,907
(197,049 2,358,609 3,155,658
250,000 261,064 11,064
170,000 412,070 242,070
(996,984) {1,065,265) (68,281)
(50,000 {45,922) 4,078
(626,984) {438,053) 188,031
(1,424,033} 1,920,556 3,344,589
{944, 530} {901,809) 43,081
(544,890 {901,809} 43,081
{2368,923) 1.018,747 3,387,670
32,551,837 32,551,837 il
$ 30082014 § 33,570,584 3,387,670

Ses ndepandent suditar's repor.

SET-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

SOLID WASTE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2003
Final Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services ¢ 4795000 § 4935231 $ 140,231
Miscellaneous 0 1,850 1,850
Total operating revenues 4,795,000 4,937,081 142,081
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 1,314,846 1,270,916 43,030
Operating expenses 2,539.5%6 2.166,741 372,855
Depreciation 200,000 300,463 (19.463)
Total operating cXpenses 4,144,442 5,747,120 397,322
Operating 1ncome 650,558 1,189 941 539 403
MNonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
[nterest revenue 175,000 51,143 (123.857)
Interest expense (315} (630 (315)
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses) 174,685 50,513 (124,172)
Income before operating
rransfers £25.243 1,240,474 415231
Operating Transfers - Out (2.904,.245) (2.893.866) 10,379
Change in Net Asscts (2,079,002) (1,653,392) 425,610
Net Assets - Beginning of ycar 7,450,566 7,450,566 0
MNet Assets - End of year § 5371564 & T797.174 % 425,610

Sas independent auditar's reporn

.08-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

MARINA FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - EUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Operating Revenues:
Rent
Gas
Diesel
Other merchandise and fees
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Operating expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest revenue

Income before operating
transfers

Operating Transfers:
Operating Transfers - out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assels - Beginning of vear

MNet Assels - End of year

Final Budget Actual Variance
s 35,000 § 2 918251 % (16,749)
245,000 250,394 5,394
936,000 1,015,966 79,966
241,000 291,783 30,785
2,357,000 2,476,396 119,396
269211 267,661 1,550
2382833 1,626,187 756,646
230,000 350,246 (120.246)
2 882,044 2,244,094 637,950
(525.044) 232,302 757,346
35,000 23.127 (11.873)
(490 044 ) 255,429 745473
{322,036) {426,074} 05,962
{1,012,080) (170,645) 841,435
6,034,230 6,034,250 4]
o Siﬂll.lﬁ'ﬂ' 5 5863585 § 841,435

See independam auditor's report
5.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Final Budget Actual Variance
Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,002,509 £ 983520 § (18,989
Intergovernmental 0 1,901 1,901
Miscellaneous 0 039 B39
Total operating revenues 1,002,509 586,360 (16,149)
Operating Expenses:
Personal services 287,615 271,137 16,478
Operating expenses 726,596 679,510 47,086
Depreciation 7,000 8,046 (1.046)
Total operating expenses 1,021,211 958,693 62,518
Operating income (loss) (18,702) 27,667 46,369
Nonoperating Revenue (Expense)
Interest revenue ] { 1]
Income (loss) before operating transfers {18,702 27,667 46,369
Operating Transfers
Operating transfers - in 4,283 4,283 0
Operating transfers - out {38,461) (34,075) [(4.386)
Total operating transfers in (out) (34,178) {29,792} {4,386)
Change in Net Assets (52,8800 (2,125) 41,983
Net Assets - Beginning of vear {51,653) {31,653) 0
Net Assets - End of vear $ (104533) § (53,778) § 41.983

See independent auditor's report,
=100



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
MEDICAL SELF-INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2003

Operating Revennes:
Contributions -
Employee contributions
Ohther agency contributions
Retired emplovee contributions
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative fees
Claims
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

MNonoperating Revenue:
Interest revenue

Income (loss) before
operating transfers

Operating Transfers - In

Change in Net Assels

Net Asscets - Beginning of year

Net Assets - End of vear

Final Budget

Aetual Yaranoe

330,000 $ 340892 § 10,892
220,000 281,255 61,255
117.500 155,729 18,229
£67.500 977,876 110,376
533,360 552,085 (18,725)
2,400,000 2260167 139833
2,933,360 2,812,252 121,108
(2.065_860) (1.834.376) 231,484
25,000 10,322 (14,678)
(2,040 8607 (1,824,054) 216,806
2,150,000 1,786,844 (363,156)
109,140 (37.210) (146,350)
1,252,370 1,252,370 i

$ 1,361,510

3 1215160 8 51461351}}

See indepandent auditor's report,

-101-



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
DENTAL SELF-INSURANCE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Operating Revenues:
Contributions -
Employee contributions
Other agency contributions
Retired employee contributions
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative charges
Claims

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating Revenue:
Interest revenue

Income (loss) before
operating transfers

Operating Transfers - In

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of vear

Net Assets - End of year

See independent auditor's report.

Final Budget  Actual Variance
61,000 § 62919 § 1919
19,500 21,554 2,254
19,000 26,628 7,628
99.300 111,101 11,801
15,000 16,170 (1,170
158,000 149,149 8,851
173,000 165,319 7,681
(73,700) (54,218) 19,482
1,(HHD 396 (604)
(72,700) (53,822) 18,578
95,632 00,022 {3.6107
22,932 36,200 13,268
71,210 71,210 0

3 94,142 .E 10?,4LL':= 5 ]3!21513

-




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEER 30, 2003

Government Activities
Capital Transparialion Capital
Improvement Revenus Improvement Revenue Improvement Revenus
Year Ending Bonds - Series 1958 Bonds - Seres 1957 Bonds - Serizs 1965
Seplember 30 Principal Interast Principal Interast Principal Intarest

2004 3 130,000 ] 163,683 5 210,000 -1 208,355 -] S0, 000 ] 282,080
2005 135,000 157 818 220,000 200,215 315,000 137,515
2006 140,000 151,798 230,000 180,425

2007 150,000 125,198 250,000 179,740

2008 155,000 138,105 250,000 168,490

2005 165,000 130,503 265,000 156,770

2010 170,000 122378 275,000 124,213

2011 180,000 113,713 250,000 130,500

2012 180,000 104,453 300,000 115,750

2013 155,000 04, 789 320,000 100,250

2014 205,000 B4 585 335,000 B3,875

2015 220,000 73,588 350,000 B&, 750

2018 230,000 81,830 370,000 48,750

2017 240,000 459433 385,000 29,875

2018 258,000 36,251 405,000 10,125

20149 285,000 22275

2020 280,000 7,560

& 3305000 3 1658071 a3 4455000 ¥ 1835083 = £15,000 = 415,205
T e————

Capltal Improvement Capital Improvement Capital Improvement
Revenue and Rafunding Revenue and Refunding Revenue and Refunding
Yoar Ending Bands - Saries 1992 Bends - Series 20014 Bonds - Seses 20018
September 30 Principal inferest Principal Imtarast Principsl Inierest
2004 3 145000 % 108,878 5 335000 5 155880 3 200,062
2005 150,000 100,670 355,000 142,080 200,062
2005 160,000 81,851 JE5,000 127,680 5 360,000 192,862
2007 170,000 B2,236 380,000 113,730 370,000 178263
2008 180,000 T1.821 340,000 85,280 385,000 163,163
2008 190,000 60,721 410,000 83 280 400,000 147 263
2010 200,000 48 821 425,000 6,580 216,000 131,163
2011 215,000 a6, 264 435,000 48,282 430,000 114,263
2012 230,000 22,663 460,000 20,018 450,000 58,381
2013 255,000 7,810 AE5, 000 8,765 AT0,000 T7.230
2014 450,004 56,825
2015 510,000 35.070
2016 530,000 11,825

$ 1605000 5 641833 5 4020000 5 B/5585 & 4810000 2§ 1,604,732

Sse indepanden! auditors raport,
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
SUMMARY OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

Business-type Activities

VWater and Sewer Water and Sewer Water and Sawer
Revenue Revenus Refunding Revenue
Year Ending Bonds - 1886 lzsue Bonds - Beries 20034 Bonds - Series 20038
Seplember 30 Principal Interest Principal Intarast Principal Interast

2004 £ 642613 -3 i0D,000 §F  ATEETS 3 251,450
2005 642,613 830,000 160,275 261,450
2006 642,613 850,000 143,275 261,450
2007 642,613 BE5, 000 123,812 261,450
2008 5 435 000 642 612 BS0, 000 101,583 251,450
200% 5 455,000 620,318 475,000 B8 500 261,450
2010 - | 485 000 596431 490,000 73,800 251,450
2011 -] 510,000 570.BE8 505,000 &7 87 251,450
2012 - | 530,000 543,555 520,000 A7, EBa 281,450
2013 - | 40,000 S14.40E 545, 000 18,087 261,450
2014 5 1,215,000 472,781 290,000 261,450
2015 5 1,285,000 204 437 251,450
2016 ¥ 1,355000 332158 251,450
2017 5 1,435,000 255937 261,450
2018 % 1,515,000 175,218 261,450
2019 = 1,600,000 20,000 261,450
2020 261,450
2021 ; 5 1,575.000 178,763
2022 1,660,000 81,612
2023 1,745,000

% 11560000 & T 79273 % 6,460,000 ] 878 462 & 4080000 % 4745025

=::-H e d. T T e

See independant auditor's report.
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The various tables included in this section present social and economic data and
the financial trends of the City government unit.

COMMENTS RELATIVE TO STATISTICAL SECTION

The following statistical tables recommended by the Government Acounting
Standards Board are not included for the reasons stated below:

* Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded
Debt per Capita - The City of Panama City has no general obligation
debt. Outstanding debt represented in the Debt Service Funds and
General Long-Term Debt Account Group is the result of the issvance of
revenue bonds issued for municipal improvements. These bonds will be
financed by ceriasin excise tax revenues and local option gas Lax
TEVENUES.

* Computation of the Legal Debt Margin is omitied because the
constitution of the State of Florida (FS200.181) set no legal limit.

* Special Assessmeni Billings and Collections - Last 10 fiscal vears is
omitted because the City is not obligated to any manner of special
assessment debl.



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

GENERAL FUMD AND RELATED FUND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
General Public Phiysical Economic Human Culture/ Debt

Year  Government Safety Environment Transporiation  Environment Services Recreation Service Tial

15054 3,444,575 B,028.296 2330,774 567,464 160,452 1,475,320 762,554 16,769,675
1993 3,389,445 B339, 106 361,106 655,719 165,157 1,667,342 B17 464 18,515,339
19546 317591 0353000 § 498178 3. 413,310 199,927 186,063 1,623,141 LOR1, 041 20,131,391
1997 3,005,203 B.671,842 20,597 3,776,948 496,829 199, 58% 1,520,149 1,394,922 19,156,079
| 998 3,207,983 10,014,680 54,629 3,474,302 516,326 196,021 1,638,266 1,472,439 20,574,646
1999 35350956 10,073,653 14,575 1,463,956 584552 189928 1,762,020 1,793,872 21,418,521
2000 3,631,486 10,358,339 k) 4,943 449 574,302 195,817 1,867,601 | 203,619 23,674,650
2001 3,753,057 11,298,308 23,858 1,221 §42 507,814 193,357 1,821,031 2277370 23,096,637
2002 3,782,311 10,882,624 14,470 3,846,835 561,990 32,938 1,947,244 2,302,075 23,640,487
2003 4104122 12072872 5,078,171 688,504 142,356 2398000 2,332,359 26,756,385

Includes: General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Debl Service Funds.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
GENERAL GOVERNMENT REVENUES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Licenses Imter- Charges for Fines and

Year Taxes and Permits _ governmental Services Forfeits Miscellaneous Taotal

1994 8,753,229 5,039,143 4,383,903 432,700 379,036 812,994 19,801,005
1995 9,342,947 5,382,710 4,536,253 474,415 322,684 1,123,199 21,182,208
1996 0,744,163 5,917,651 4 888,275 514,059 381,466 1,011,574 22,457,188
1997 9,990,401 5,821,962 4,972,755 528,744 374,703 1,258,615 22,947,180
1998 10,474,889 60,094,708 6,051,765 554,609 494,111 1,825,230 25495112
1999 10,705,994 6,377,541 5492,157 589,650 519,170 1,391,845 25,276,366
2000 11,534,352 1,171,256 6,239,827 660,754 380874 2,099,078 28,095,141
2001 12,263,313 7,132,821 4,727,769 634,248 385,44] 2,349,514 27,493,106
2002 13,609,669 7,331,546 4,753,255 665,842 343,803 1,569,631 28,273,746
2003 14,588,847 1357.776 5,524 485 l,185,584 878,738 29,735 430

Includes: General Fund, Special Revenue F unds, Debt Service Funds and Capital Projects Funds,
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Current
Collections
Met al
Fiscal Total Tax Discounts
Year Levy Allowed
1993 4,379,183 4,117,143
1954 4,191,574 4 224 577
1995 4,560,136 4,368,624
19596 4,706,009 4512112
1997 4 009 681 4,785,640
1998 5,205,562 4 982 286
1999 3,716,067 5477309
2000 6,080,990 5,847,647
2001 6,683,286 6,424,648
2002 6,968,193 6,604,545

(1) By May 31 during each year for which taxes are levied all taxes have been collected and
remitted to the City or the delinquent taxes are maised by public auction of lax certificates
and the proceeds are remitted to the City by the County Tax Collector. Therefore, there are
no material unremitted tax revenues for each fiscal year on September 30,

MNote: Based on information provided by Bay County Tax Collector
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(IN THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)

UNAUDITED
Ratio of Total
Assessed
Value
Real Property Personal Property Centrally Total to Total
Fiscal Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Assessed Estimated Estimated
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value  Property Value Actual Value Actual Value
1094 688,908 1,112,388 188,128 271,075 3,524 880,560 1,386,987 63.49%
1895 713,420 1,144,144 196,339 293,288 2,279 912,038 1439711 63.35%
1996 737,305 1,174,130 201,525 325,007 2,421 941,251 1,501,558 62.68%
1987 786,108 1,224 088 210,501 344,638 2,182 098,791 1,570,908 63.58%
1986 819,278 1,269,060 220,686 364,949 2,665 1,042,629 1,636,674 63.70%
1999 896,354 1,384 873 242,539 400,311 4,883 1,143,776 1,790,067 63.590%
2000 938,501 1,417,537 275,087 421,694 5,362 1,218,950 1,844,593 66, 08%
2001 1,032,401 1,566,937 294,739 449,450 4,579 1,332,119 2,021,366 65.90%
2002 1,077,065 1,605,896 311,449 472,653 4 686 1,393,200 2,083,235 6.8 8%
2003 1,177,046 1,778,290 296,415 468,446 5,266 1,478,727 2,252,001 65.66%

Source: Office of the Property Appraiser, Bay County, Florida
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

UNAUDITED
Water-

Fiscal City of Bay County-Wide Management

Year Panama City County Schoal Tax District Total

| 954 5.000 58172 02730 L0500 20,1402
1995 5.000 5.8172 94980 L0500 20,3652
1994 5.000 58172 9.2260 L0500 20,0932
1997 5.000 58172 0.3270 L0500 20,1942
1998 5.000 58172 G, 2690 D500 20,1362
1999 5,040 5.8472 B.9180 0500 19.8152
2004 5,000 58472 86690 0500 19.5662
2001 3.000 5.8472 8.5300 0500 19.4272
2002 5,000 5.8472 8.6550 D500 19.5522
2003 5.000 5.8472 85690 0500 19.4662

SOURCE: Office of the Property Appraiser, Bay County, Florida



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL BEONDED DEBT
TO GENERAL FUND AND RELATED EXPENDITURES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Ratio of Debt

Service to
Interest General Fund

Fiscal and Fiscal Total Debt and Related
Year Principal Charges Service Expenditures* Expenditures
1994 275,000 481,362 756,362 16,769,673 4.51%
1995 300,000 493 53] 793,531 18,515,648 4.29%
1994 310,000 740,575 1.050.575 20,131,391 5.22%
1997 545,000 828,590 1,373,590 19,156,078 T.17%
1998 570,000 |, 128,489 1,698,489 20.800,6%6 §.17%
1999 765,000 1,028,872 1,793,872 21,418,521 B.38%
2000 795,000 | 108,619 1,903,619 23,674,630 B.04%
2001 930,000 1,347,370 2,277,370 23,096,637 9.86%
2002 005 000 1,307,075 2,302,075 23 640,487 9.74%
2003 1,040,000 1,292,359 2,332,359 30,235,117 7.71%

* These expenditures include General, Special Revenue and Delt Service Funds.
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City ol Panama Cily
Bay County School Board
Total direct and overlapping
bonded debt payable
from taxes

Estimaled population

Overlapping net debt per
capita

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

LUNAUDITED
Net
Bonded Debt Estimated
September 30, Percent
2003 Applicable
5 £.568.871 100,00
5 43,310,000 23.6

—_———————

A11-

Direct and
Orwverlapping
Met Bonded Delt

$ 8,568,871
10,221,160

$ 18,790,031
16,541

$ 514



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (1)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
Net Revenue
Fiscal Giross Available for DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
Year Revenue (2) Expenses (3)  Debt Service (4) Principal Inleresl Tolal Coverage
1994 8,159,225 5,209,827 2,949,398 255,000 545,743 BOM1,743 3.68
1995 8,885,151 5,396,133 3,485,018 265,000 557,368 822,368 4.24
1996 B.k61,533 5,612,370 3,249,163 1,360,426 1.214,11% 2.574,545 1.26
1997 9,478,080 5,680,686 3,797.400 432,067 1,255,988 1,688,055 2.25
1998 10,974,025 3,695,311 5,278,694 540,000 1,122,826 1,662,826 3.17
1999 10,631,800 5,750,308 4,881,492 565,000 1,091,835 1,656,855 2.95
2000 11,827,208 5,920,948 5,206,260 600,000 1,057,955 1,657,955 3.56
2001 12,031,234 6,319,966 5,711,268 635,000 1,027,793 1,662,793 3.43
2002 11,179,844 6,370,056 4,809,788 655,000 996,353 1,651,353 291
2003 11,113,815 6,977,784 4,136,031 100,000 1,080,938 1,180,938 3.50
WOTES: (1) Includes Utilities Fund only.

-112-

{2) Includes all operating and nonoperating revenues except impact fees.
{3) Includes all operating and nonoperating expenses except interest expense and depreciation expense.
{4) Before operating transfers out,



CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED
City of Hay Per

Fiscal Fanams City County Capita Median School Unemployment
Tear Population {17 Populstion (1) [scame (1) Age (2) Enrollment {3} Bate (4)
1994 36315 136,289 17,8352 .5 26,000 $40%
1995 6, Tl 138,798 18,060 149 26,590 #.5%
1996 37236 142,160 20,3660 35.d 25341 6.3%
1997 37,347 144,584 21314 356 20,823 6.6%
1998 37860 147 486 22,274 188 26,846 6.%%
1999 ITTTT 50,119 TLETS 6.3 26,602 h.%
20040 36,417 148217 24115 172 26,604 6.9%
20K 36428 150,287 24 515 Fot Aviilable 21217 5.5%
2002 Al 152,186 Mot Availabla 7.8 27,5991 4.
2003 654 154, 827 Mot Available Mot available 27,531 [

SOURCES: (1] University of Florida Bureau of Economic and Business Research
(2] Bay county Chamber of Commerce
(3) Bay county School Board - County-wide Enrollment

(4) Florida State Employment Service
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

PROPERTY VALUES, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

UNAUDITED
COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL
CONSTRUCTION (1) CONSTRUCTION (1) Bank Property
Fiscal Mumber Number Deposits Value

Year of Units Value of Units Value {In Thousands) {2} (In Thousands)
1904 187 20,006,230 216 6,978,008 607,957 1,386,987
| 995 164 10,174,400 353 6,147,109 669,405 1,439,711
1956 151 0 384 395 283 3,237,904 681,774 1,201,539
1997 129 21,872,000 313 14,580,980 1,180,602 1,570,908
1998 194 28.201,391 244 5,867,708 1,265,285 1,636,674
1999 122 15,624,873 261 7,488,358 1,330,488 1,790,067
2000 127 33,083,872 233 7,797,403 1,435,000 1,844,592
2001 102 8,705,578 241 5,374,813 1,461,000 2,021,366
2002 50 Mot Available 75 Not Available 1,533,080 2,083,236
2003

NOTES: (1) Based on building permits issued

(2) Excludes savings and loan asseciations prior to 1997
SOURCES: Bay County Building Department

Florida Bankers Association
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Southern Bell Tel & Tel Co
Gull Power Company

Berg Steel Pipe Carporation
Columbia HCA Hospital
Wellstream Corporation
Panama City Associates (Mall)
Panama City Square, Lid.
Mercantile Properties, lnc.
Sears Roebuck & Company
Peoples First Community Bank

Tolal Assessments

SOURCE:

CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

TEN MAJOR ASSESSED TAXPAYERS OF 2002

(Mot Available for 2003.)

Ollice of the Property Appraiser, Bay County, Florida
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UNAUDITED

Real Percent of Personal Percent of Percent of

Estate Total Property Total Total Total
1,823,659 275% § 31,050,424 2384% $ 32874082  1673%
3,267,134 4.93% 24,798,767 19,04% 28,065,901 14.25%
213,259 0.32% 27,731,632 21.30% 27,944 89] 14.22%
13,411,809 20.25% 13,178,360 10.12% 26,590,169 13.53%
0.00% 17,843,933 13.70% 17,843,933 9.08%
14,574,391 22.00% 53,481 0.04% 14,627,872 7.45%
12,281,623 18.54% 4,930 0.00% 12,286,553 6.25%
6,706,179 10.12% 1,252,814 0.96% 7,958,991 4.05%
6,611,881 @.98% 1,394,791 1.07% 8,006,672 4.08%
7,356,722 11.11% 12,909,497 0.91% 20,266,219 10.32%
3 66,246,636 100.00% § 130,218,629 100.00% § 196465285 100.00%




CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2002
UNAUDITED

Date of Incorporation March 12, 1926
Form of Government Commission/Manager

Number of employees 524 Sewage system:

Area in square miles 34 Miles of sanitary sewers 243
Miles of storm sewers 57
City of Panama City [acilities and scrvices: Number of treatment plants 2

Miles of streets 198 Number of service connections 14,640

Number of street lights 4,353 Duaily average treatment in gallons 4,533,000

Culture snd recreation: Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons 10,000,000
Commumity Centers 7 Water system:

Parks 29 Miles of water mains 311
Park acreage 150 Number of service connections 16,854
Baseball and softball fields 14 Number of fire hydrants 1,413
Public marinas z Daily average consumption in gallons 5,263,000
Public boat launching areas 4 Facilities and services not included in the reporting entity:

Civie Cenlers 1 Education:

Fire protection: Number of elementary schools 23
Number of stations 5 Mumber of middle schools 7
Mumber of fire personnel and officers 34 Number of high schools 5

Police protection: Number of community colleges 1
MNumber of stations 1 Number of universitities |
Number of substations 8 Number of vocational/technical schools 1
Number of police personnel and officers 147 Number of special purpose schools 3
Number of patrol units 132 Hospitals:

Number of law violations: Number of hospitals 2
Physical arrests 5.168 Mumber of patient beds:
Trmaffic violations 10,594 Bay Medical Center 433
Parking violations 57 Gulf Coast Medical Center 176
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

CFDA/
Federal/State Agency, Pass-Through Entity, CSFA
Federal Program/State Praject Number Expenditures

U.5. Department of Housing and Urban
Development:
Direct programs:
Community Development Block Grant
14219 & 772985

11.5. Department of Justice:

Direct programs:
COPS Universal Hiring 16.710 97,450
BVD Vest Gramt 16.607 B.038

Passed through Florida Department of Law Enforcement:

Bymes ASAP Grant 16.579 66.651

Total 1.5, Department of Justice 173,039
Department of Transporlation

Speed Awareness Grant 20.605 24383

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Citizens Corps, including CERT Guidance Grant 83.564 2 986

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
Florida Coastal Management Grant 11.419 7,378

£

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 980.771

{Continued)

See independent auditor's repan.
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (Continued)

CFDAS
Federal/Siate Agency, Pass-Through Entity, CSFA
Federal Program/State Froject Number Expenditures
Florida Housing Finance Corp:
State Housing Institutions Partnership Program 52901 § 154,422
Department of Environmental Protection
St. Andrews Docking 37.017 29,760
Department of Health
Florida Emergency Medical 64.003 9,877
Total Expenditures of State Financial Assistance % 194,059

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal
grant activity of the City of Panama City, Florida, and is presented on the accrual basis
of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governrments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements,

See independent auditor's report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REFPORTING BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners
and City Manager
City of Panama City, Flonda

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Panama City, Florida, as of and for the vear
ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2003, We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca and
the standards applicable 1o financial aedits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, 15sued by the
Comptroller General of the United Siates,

Compliance

As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul whether the City of Panama City, Florida's financial
gtatements are free of malcrial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
miaterial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providimg an opinien on
compliznce with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reporied under Crovermment Auditing Standords.

Internal Co rer Financia

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Panama City, Florida's internal control
over financial reporting in order 1o determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the fmancial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over fnancial
reporting.  Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily
disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A
material weakness 18 8 condinon in which the design or operation of one or more of the intermal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would
be matenal in relation to the financial statements being nudited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal eourse of performing their assigned functions, We noted no
matlers invelving the intemal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider 1o be
material weaknesses,
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City commission, management, others
within the organization, and federal and state awarding apencies and pass-through entities, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Panama City, Flonida J}
December 18, 2003 < M e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners,
and City Manager
City of Panama City, Flonda

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Panama City, Florida, with the types of compliance
requirements described in the LLS. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement, that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30,
2003, The City of Panama City, Florida's major federal programs are identified in the summary of anditor's
resuttz section of the accompanving Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.  Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and prants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of the City of Panama City, Florida's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City of Panama City, Florida's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government duditing
Stemdards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, dudits of
Staes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards, and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance aboul whether noncompliance
with the tvpes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examimng, on a test basis, evidence about the City of
Panama City, Flonda's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Panama City, Florida’s compliance
with those requirements.
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In our opinion, the City of Panama City, Florida, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred 1o sbove that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30,
2003,

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City of Panama City, Florida, is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective imternal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable 1o federal programs. In planning and performing our audit. we considered the City of Panama
City, Florida’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on & major federal program in order 1o determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control over compliance n
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

Cur consideration of the intermal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the desipn
or operation of one or more of the intermal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws. regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to & major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normmal course of performing their assipned functions. We noted no
matiers involving the intemal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weiknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City commission, management, others
within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anvone other than these specified parties,

Panama City, Florida M M .-’M

December 18, 2003
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMEBER 30, 2003

A, Summary of Audit Results

B.

C.

1.

LI}

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of
Panama City, Florida.

No reportable conditions relating to the sudit of the financial statements are reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.

. Mo instances of noncompliance material to the financial staternents of the City of Panama City,

Florida, were disclosed during the audit

. No reportable conditions relating to the audit of the major federal awards programs were

disclosed.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal awards programs for the City of
Panama City, Florida, expresses an ungualified opinion on all major federal awards,

Audit findings relative to the major federal awards programs for the City of Panama City,
Florida, are reported in Part C. of this schedule,

The programs tested as major programs included:

Federal Program Fede
Community Development Block Grant 14.219
Staic Projects Stule CSFA No.
MNone NiA

The threshold for distinguishing type A and B programs was $300,000 for major federal award
Programs.

The City of Panama City, Florida, was determined to be a low-nisk auditee pursuant to OMB
Circular A133.

Findings - Financial Statements

Mone

Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs

Mone

{Comtinued on page 124)
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CITY OF PANAMA CITY, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2003

(Continued from papge 123)

D. Other Issucs

No summary Schedule of Pror Audit Findings is required because there were no prior audit
findings related to Federal programs or state projects.

No corrective action plan is required because there were no findings required to be reported under
the Federal Single Audit Act.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Honarable Mayor, City Commissioners,
and City Manager
City of Panama City, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Panama City, Florida, as of and for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated December 13, 2003.

We conducted our audit in accordance with United States generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial nudits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States: and OMB Circular A-133, Awdits of States, Local
Crovernments, and Non-Profit Organizations. We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on
Compliance and Internal control over financial Reporting, Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance
and Internal Control over Compliance Applicable to each Major Federal Program and State Project, and
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Disclosures in those reports and schedules, which are dated
December 18, 2003, should he considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10,550, Rules of the Auditor General.
Those rules {Section 10.554(1)g)].0.) require that we address in the management letter, if not already
addressed in the audilor’s report on compliance and internal controls, whether or not inaccuracies,
shortages, defaleations, fraud, andior viclations of laws, rules, regulations. and contractual provisions
reparted in the preceding annual financial audit report have been corrected. There were no inaccuracies,
irrepularities, shortapes, defalcations, and/or violations of laws, rules. repulations, and contractual
provisions disclosed in the preceding annual report.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(g)1.b.) require that we address in the management
letter, if not already addressed in the auditor’s reports on compliance and internal controls or schedule of
findings and questioned costs, whether or not recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit have been followed. Recommendations made in the preceding annual financial audit report have
been followed except for related recommendations as noted in current year comments.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1 J2)2.), the scope of our audit
included a review of the provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of
public funds. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Panama City, Flenida
complied with Section 218.4135, Florida Statutes.
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The Rules of Aoditor General (Section 10.5354{1 g}, ) require disclosure in the management letter of
the following matters if not already addressed in the auditor’s reports on compliance and internal
controls or schedule of findings and questioned costs: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations and
contractual provisions that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred; (2) improper or illegal
expenditures; (3) improper or inadequate accounting procedures (e.g., the omission of required
disclosures from the financial statements); (4) failures to properly record financial transaction; and (3)
other inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud discovered by, or that come 1o the
attention of the auditor. Current vear comments are as follows:

Pri aovernment — Current Year Comments

MNone

Component Unit-Panama City Port Authority — Current Year Comments

As noted 1n the prior year, we recommend that close attention be given 1o reviewing the aceuracy of
the accounting data to insure the reporting of accurate up-to-date financial information.

Component Unit — Panama City Downtown Improvement Board — Current Year Comments

For the year ended September 30, 2003, the Panama City Downtown Improvement Board's general
fund had expenditures in excess of budget. Governmental Accounting Standards Board Codification
Section 2300.106h requires that the notes to the financial statements disclose violations of budgetary
controls, The general fund had budgeted expenditures of $496,981 and actually expended $504,287.
Accordingly we have included this information in the notes to the financial statements and
recommend that the board closely monitor its budgetary practices.

The Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1)(g)5.) also require that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity by disclosed
in the management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. This information has
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1){g)6.a.), the scope of our audit
mncluded a review of the provisions of Section 218.503(1), Florida Statues, regarding financial
emergencies. In connection with our audit, we determined that the City of Panama City, Florida,
Downtown Improvement Board, and Panama City Port Authority are not in a state of financial
emergency as a consequence of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statuies.

As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Section 10.554(1 Kgi6.b.), we determined that the
annual financial report for the City of Panama City, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2003, filed with the Department of Banking Finance pursuant to Section 218.32, Florida Statutes, is in
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003.
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As required by the Rules of the Auditor General (Sections 10.554(g)(6)c. and 10.556), we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the entity’s
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.

This management letter is intended solely for the information of the City of Panama City, Florida and
management. and the State of Florida Office of the Auditor General and certain regulatory agencies, and
is not intended to be and should not be used by amyone other than these specified parties.

Panama City, Florida

December 18, 2003 H (ﬁ’ : {f, ; ﬂ?

«127-






